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About Porvair

Porvair is a specialist filtration and environmental technology
group, with operations in the UK, US, Germany and China,
employing about 500 people.

The Group develops, designs and manufactures specialist filtration
and separation equipment. We serve a range of markets of which
aviation, energy and industrial process, environmental laboratories
and non-ferrous metals are the most important.

At the heart of what we do is the filtration and engineering expertise
which allows us to solve customer problems across all the markets
we serve.

Porvair aims to develop and exploit its expertise in specialist
filtration and environmental technologies for the sustainable
benefit of its shareholders, staff and other stakeholders.
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Key performance highlights in 2009

Financial highlights - The business reacted swiftly to address
costs where necessary QOver the course

2 ?zegggugssioé 'rc:ﬁl%ena)r were £552 million of the year Group headcount was cut
by 15%

= Profit before tax and exceptional items
- The second half of the year was better
was £17 million (2008 £4 2 million), with sales rates in the US firming in the
which was almost all generated in the

final quarter The Group was profitable
ff: So 2(11 qarl;'ﬁfot:?z%%asr zfgtn:)l ﬁtg:ﬁ tax and cash generative for the year as a whole

-» Cash generated from operations of £6 0 2 SOOdtStrﬂtEg'c prolgress st mad?h
million (2008 £4 2 million) was well espite the prevailing conditions The
ahead of the prior year benefits of revenue from new products,

cautious geographic expansion and the

-» Net debt reduced to £13 9 million integration of recent acquisitions can
(2008 £16 7 miltion) be seen in the results for the year.

- Final dividend of 125 pence per share = Seal Analytical, the water analysis
(2008 125 pence) 1s maintained business acquired in 2008, had a strong

first year with the Group, generating
profits growth and a good cash return
-» The results for the year are dominated on Investment

by the sharp fall in demand at Metals

Filtration in the first half of the year as

aluminium and US automotive de-stocking

fed through the supply chain

Operating highlights

Turnover (£'m) Operating profit (£'000)
55 5000
£55.2m 50 548 552 £2.8m 4500 4816
45 462 4 000
a 40 ass {£2 1m after 3500 Jg73 3895
35 exceptional items) 3000 3301
30 2500 2765
b 2000
15 1500
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5 500
0 0
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Profit before tax (£'000) Basic earnings per share (pence)
4500 700
£1.7| I l 4000 4158 2'7p 600 .
(£11m after 3500 (1 6p after 5 8p
3000 3371 l 500 52p
exceptional items) 3076 exceptional items)
2500 2749 400 27
2 000 300 P ;
1 500 1718 27p
1000 200
500 100
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* All amounts shown before exceptional items




02 | Porvair plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009

Porvair at a glance

Porvair serves the needs of a range of specialist filtration markets around the world
and 1s managed through two operating divisions The Microfiltration division comprises
the Porvair Filtration Group, Porvair Sciences and Seal Analytical and 1s based in the
UK, US and Germany The Metals Filtration division trades as SELEE Corp and 1s based

in the US and China

Microfiltration Dwvision — UK, US & Germany  Metals Filtration Division — US & China

The Mcrofiltration division provides
bespoke filtration solutions to a diverse
range of customers and markets It has

operations in the UK, US and Germany and

employs 340 people Its sales are global

The Metals Filtration division serves the
market for the filtration and handling of
molten metal it has operations in the
US and China and employs 140 people
Its sales are global.

Principal markets served

= Aviation

-» Energy and industnial process
- Environmental laboratories

Principal markets served
= Non-ferrous metals

Applied technology

- Metallic and polymeric filttration
technologies

= Instrumentation

Applied technology
- Ceramic filtration technology

Annual sales

£36.5m

Annual sales

US$29.0m

Revenue by division {£'000)  Revenue by destination (%) Revenue by origin (%)

Microhiltration £36 529
Metals Filtratron £18 696

Amencas 46% UK 48%

UK 24% Amencas. 39%
Europe 15% Europe 12%
Asia 13% Asa 1%

ROW 2%
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Our strategy

The Group manufactures in the UK, US,
Germany and China and sales are global

Porvair's strategy for the creation of growth
and sustainable shareholder value 1s to

= Focus on markets which

— require proprietary products that are
typically bespoke, consumable and
have long life cycles,

— are driven by regulation, legislation
(health, safety or environmental), or
a cntical need for process reliability,

— offer sustainable barriers to entry,
extensive quality accreditation, design
nights, or patent protection

= Concentrate on markets that offer
attractive long term growth potential
The Group’s principat chosen markets
are

— aviation,

— energy and industnal process,
— environmental laboratones, and
- non-ferrous metals filtration

=» Generate organic growth through new
product development and geographic
expansion

- Acquire complementary businesses
that meet our nigorous financial and
commerciat criteria

- Maintain an approprately funded balance
sheet and generate sufficient cash to
sustain a progressive dividend policy

2009 strategic progress and new product development

In 2009 13% of the Group's revenues came from sales of products that have recently
been commercially released by the Group A summary of progress on new product

development 1s given below

Aviation
- Nitrogen Generating System (NGS) filter
Is now n production for Boeing

- An NGS filter for Airbus expected to be
in production duning 2010

= NGS retrofit has now been mandated
by the FAA.

- Several other NGS solutions are being
developed by the Group

Energy and industrial process
- Filter media development has significantly
increased gasification filter life

=» Nuclear capability enhanced with nuclear
decommissioning and decontamination
filtration solutions

- Nuclear order pipeline growing

Environmental laboratories
-» Seawater analysis instruments are world
market leaders

-» Broader range of water analysers planned

-+ Commercial launch of ultra-clean filters
for multi-well plates planned

Non-ferrous metals
- Patented alumimum filter now 1n use
by 80% of customers

- Nickel-cobalt super-alloy filter now in
full production

-» Patent pending on a new foundry filter

= Successful tnals of lead acid battery
using our carbon foam component
Customer development continues
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Chairman and Chief Executive’s statement

Charles Matthews Ben Stocks
Chairman Group Chief Executive

“The Board 15 confident that Porvair 1s
well positioned to benefit as economic
conditions improve "

Performance summary
2009 was a year of maintaimng strategic progress
while dealing with difficult economic circumstances

We are pleased tc report that Porvair remained
profitable and cash generative despite the tough
economic conditions The business reacted swiftly to
unprecedented changes in demand early in the year,
addressing costs where necessary Over the course
of the year Group headcount was cut by 15% Good
strategic progress was made, despite the difficult

conditions The benefits of revenue from new products,

which grew to 13% of total revenues, cautious
geographic expansion and the integration of recent
acquisitions can be seen in the results for the year

Revenues in the year to 30 November 2009 were
£55 2 mullion (2008 £54 8 rmillion), benefiting from
a full year contribution from Seal Analytical, acquired
in july 2008

=» Reverues n the Microfiltration division were
£36 5 million {2008 £32 3 million) Stripping out

acquisition effects, this division’s revenues declined

10% Revenues in Metals Filtration, the division
hardest hit by falling demand early in the year,
declined 32% in constant currency

=¥ As previously reported, exceptional restructuring
costs of £0 7 million (2008 Emil) were incurred
to adapt each business to the changing economic

arcumstances Operating profit before exceptional

items for the Group was £2 8 million {2008 £4 8
mitlion} Operating profit was £2 1 rmithon {2008
£4 8 million) Profit before tax was £1 1 million
{2008 £4 2 milhon) Profit before tax before
exceptional restructuring costs was £1 7 rmillion
{2008 £4 2 million)

=» Cash generation was good Cash generated from
operations increased 42% to £6 0 million (2008
£4 2 milhon) Net debt at 30 Novermber 2009
decreased by £2 8 mitlion to £13 9 million
{2008 £16 7 million)

The results for 2009 are dominated by the sharp
fall iIn demand reported at the half year, with
unprecedented production cuts made in many
industnial sectors, particularly in the US The Metals

Filtration division was hit by dermand reductions of up

to 50% In some markets, notably global aluminum
and US automotive In response, staff numbers were
cut by 40% n the US, and the Metals Filtration
division’s operations were restructured accordingly
The second half of the year was better, as the
de-stocking phase of the recession eased and the
Group's lower cost base took effect

Six months to  Six months to Total

31May 2009 30 Nov 2009 2009

£ 000 £000 £ 000

Revenue 26,995 28,230 55,225
Operating profit before

exceptional items 523 2,242 2765

Exceptional items (637) {25) {662)

Operating (loss)/profit {114) 2,217 2,103

Not all sectors were affected by the global downturn
in 2009 Energy filtration demand remained strong
and demand for water analysis products grew
robustly The year finished in a manner that gave
grounds for cautious optimism Sales from new
products grew 18% to £7 1 million (2008 £60
milion) while demand levels in aluminium and US
auto markets improved 10-15% in the final quarter
Both will support better trading in 2010, as will our
newly opened Microfiltration sales office in France
and Metals Filtration satellite plant in China These
strategic initiatives are helping Porvair weather the
downturn, and will accelerate our recovery as
conditions iImprove

Porvair's activities and strategy

Porvair specialises in filtration and related
environmental technology Our products are largely
engineered consumables

We operate two divisions The Microfiltration
division comprises the Porvair Filtration Group,
Porvair Sciences and Seal Analytical Its principal
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Developments & Opportunities

Water plays an important part of the economy of Florida, the supply of water and the management of its
untque wetlands are an important part of the economy of the state

The St Johns River Water Management Authority, one of the five water authorities in Flornda, 15 responsible
for supplying clean water and managing the water quality of the natural ecosystems of the district

It uses a mix of continuous flow and discrete inorganic chemistry analysers supplied by Seal Analytical in
its environmental laboratories Qur analysers are used to assess nutnient pollution in natural water systems
and to ensure water piped to homes and businesses meets strict regulatory standards

-) Meeting growing needs for water
cleanliness and quality
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Chairman and Chief Executive’'s statement continued

markets are aviation, environmental laboratory
supplies and industnal/energy filtration The Metals
Filtration division trades as Selee Corporation

Its principal markets are the filtration of molten
aluminium and super-alloy metals

The Group manufactures in the UK, USA, Germany
and China Sales are global

Porvair’s strategy for the creation of growth and
sustainable shareholder value Is to

=» Focus on markets which

* require proprietary products that are typically
bespoke, consumable and have long life cycles,

- are driven by regulation, legislation (health, safety
or environmental), or a entical need for process
rebiability,

+ offer sustainable barriers to entry, extensive
quality accreditation, design rights, or patent
protection

=* Concentrate on markets that offer attractive
long term growth potential The Group's principal
chosen markets are

« aviation,

+ energy and industrial process,

« environmental laboratories, and
« non-ferrous metals filtration

=* Generate organic growth through new product
development and geographic expansion

=* Acquire complementary businesses that meet
our rigorous finanoal and commercial critena

—¥ Maintain an appropriately funded balance sheet
and generate sufficient cash to sustain a
progressive dividend policy

Operating review

Divisional performance — Microfittration

Revenue at the Microfiltration division was £36 5
rulbon (2008 £32 3 million) Operating profits before
exceptional items were £5 3 milhion (2008 £5 1 rmullion)
Excluding the tmpact of acquisitions, revenues were
down 10% across the year

Aviation demand fell around 11% at constant
currencies across the year This was a resilient
performance in the circumstances due in part to our
customer portfolio which covers commercial, regional
and defence markets for both new bwild and after
market spares Expectations for 2010 are for similar
levels of revenue to that achieved in 2009, with
expected weakness in some segments offset by new
product introducticns Notably, demand for our
proprietary inerting filters (a wital part of an aircraft’s
fuel tank safety system) is growing

Sales to energy markets were strong, offset by
weakness in general industnal demand, particulart

in the US As reported at the interim stage, severa
sizeable contracts were delivered to nuclear customers
duning the year, with spares and other consumables
to follow in 2010 The general level of activity and the
order book in the energy {nuclear and gasification)
market 1s promising and we have opened a sales
office in France to support our plans for expansion

The Microfiltration division’s small US subsidiary had
a difficult first half of the year as demand fell across
US industry However, it picked up new customer
orders through the year and has started 2010 much
more robustly The geographic expansion of this part
of our business 1s a focus for the next few years

Seal Analytical, the water analysis business acquired
in 2008, had a strong first year with the Group,
generating profits growth and a good cash return

on investment Weaker demand 1in the US was offset
by improved Asian demand The rationalisation and
integration of this business was finished during the
year and 1t has started a growth plan based on
geographical expansion, new product revenue growth,
and reinvigoration of its installed base It has started
2010 with a lower cost base and a stronger order
book than twelve months ago

Divisional performance — Metals Filtration

After record revenue in 2008, demand in Metals
Filtration fell sharply in the first half of 2009 as
alumirium and US automotive de-stacking fed through
the supply chain For the year, revenues were £187
million {2008 £22 5 million} In its operating currency,
US dollars, this was a 32% reduction As reported at
the interim stage, a restructunng programme was
undertaken in which employee numbers were
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Developments & Opportumities

Porvair Filtration Group provides filtration solutions to the nuclear fuel, power generation, decontamination
and decommussioning, and waste treatment and storage industries

Decontamination and decommuissioning projects to clean up the nuclear waste from the first generation of power
stations and the legacy from nuclear arms production are a witat part of the environmental management of the
nuclear ndustry Projects requiring specialist filtration systems range from the clean up of hquid nuclear waste to
the reprocessing of weapons grade plutonum into fuel for use in power reactors

In 2009, Porvair provided high specification bespoke filters for a patented steam reformation process system,
which converts liquid waste to a lower volume of solid waste for final processing and storage The plant 15 being
mstalled at the ldaho National Laboratories in the US to clean up one million gallons of radioactive sodium bearing
waste Solutions of this type are expected to be widely adopted in the US and UK over the next ten years

»

{=»: Providing next generation emissions
control solutions
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Chairman and Chief Executive’s statement continued

reduced by 40% and remaining staff participated in
a salary sacrifice scheme The US management team
performed well in difficult circumstances

As de-stocking worked through, demand stabilised in
the middle of the year, and by the final quarter was
running at levels roughly 10-15% higher than the
lows of February, March and April Operating results
consequently improved Cash generation was good
throughout the year

Progress with new products - the key to sustainable
recovery at Metals Filtration — continued despite the
economic situation Our patented "Selee CS-X™"
alumimum filter has gained widespread acceptance in
the market It offers users a more efficient, lightweight
filter that does not contain phosphates or ceramic
fibres We already have around 50% global share of
this market 80% of our current customers are now
using the preduct This will increase in 2010, as we
start to win competitive accounts

Customer trials of other new products have also gone
well, notably a more robust foundry filter, for which
commercial shipments began at the end of the year
Imitial shipments of a hugh performance battery
component were made and worked well in our US
customer’s first generation battery Upheaval in the
2009 US truck market held the customer back and
caused 1t to accelerate the development of its second
generation battery, which has wider market appeal
and will remain n development for 2010 prior to
launch i 2011

Whilst US and European demand for the Metals
Filtration dvision’s products has been badly affected,
Asian demand has increased A satellite plant to meet
this demand was opened in China duning the year
and will expand in 2010

Earnings per share, dividend and financing

Earnings per share were 16 pence (2008 7 0 pence)
Excluding exceptional restructuring costs, earnings per
share were 2 7 pence (2008 70 pence)

The business has been cash generative throughout
the year and has reduced net debt by £2 8 million
Net debt at 30 November 2009 was £13 9 million
{2008 £16 7 million) Cash generated from operations
was £6 0 million {2008 £4 2 million} Durning the

course of the year banking arrangements were
reviewed and certain covenants amended to reflect
the changes in 2009 trading patterns

it ts the Board's opimion that Porvair will recover
well as conditions improve As a consequence, the
Directers recommend a maintaned final dividend
of 125 pence (2008 125 pence) making a full year
dmdend of 2 25 pence (2008 2 25 pence)

Staff

In what has been a difficult year, the Directors wish
to thank all Porvair staff for their hard work during
2009 Our US staff, who have borne the brunt of the
downturn, deserve special mention Porvair did not
award any pay Increases at the start of 2010 as we
wait to see how economic conditions develop, and we
acknowledge this contribution from colleagues across
the Group In sometimes trying circumstances Porvair
teams have continued to develop their businesses and
maintain high levels of customer service They have
done well

Current trading and outlock

Current levels of demand across the business have
been stable for several months 2010 has started
satisfactonly Revenue run rates in the US are 10-15%
ahead of the lows reached in early 2005 Crder books
n Microfiltration are at reasonable levels

The Board has set a cautious plan for 2010, recogmsing
the uncertainties of the globat economc situation
Nonetheless the Board sees grounds for guarded
optimism Microfiltration starts the year with a
satisfactory order book and a promising pipeline of
larger nuclear and energy orders It 1s expanding its
presence in Europe, the US and China The Metals
Filtration division 1s benefiting from a tower cost

base such that modest increases in monthly revenues
will improve results Growth from new products

will continue in 2010 The Board 1s confident that
Porvair i1s well positioned to benefit as economic
conditions improve

Charles Matthews, Chairman
Ben Stocks, Group Chief Executive

25 January 2010
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Developments & Opportunities

Porvair Selee 1s the wortd leader in the filtration of cast house alumimum Its filters are used in the preparation
of metal for a range of uses from production of cans to large scale parts for aircraft In 2009 it was awarded the
Amencan Ceramic Society Corporate Environmental Achievement Award for its new formulation for aluminium
cast house hlters This new filter, Selee CS-X™, already adopted by 80% of our customers

+ Has improved filtration charactenstics especially m relation to high magnesium alloys,

* Has a better environmental profile in that 1t does not use either phosphates or ceramic fibres,
» Is lighter to handle and retains less metal when spent, and

+ s patented

These advantages will make the new filter more sustainably competitive than the previous formulation

-) Delivering products with improved
environmental and safety benefits
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Finance Director's review

Chris Tyler
Group Finance Diwrector

"Net cash generated from operations was
£6 0 million Reductions in working capital
of £1 3 million boosted operating cash flow
ahead of the prior year”

Group operating performance

Group revenues were £55 2 million (2008 £54 8
million) and operating profit before exceptional
restructuring costs of £0 7 million was £2 8 million
(2008 £4 8 million) The operating performance and
key performance mdicators of the Microfiltration and
Metals Filtration divisions are described in detail in
the Chawman and Chief Executive’s statement The
operating loss associated with the Other Unallocated
segment was £1 3 million (2008 £1 3 mullion}, which
mainly comprises Group corporate costs, some
research and development costs, new business
development costs and general financial services

Key performance indicators

The Group considers its key performance indicators
to be revenue growth and operating margins of its
principal operations, revenue from new products,
profit before tax growth, earmings per share growth,
interest cover, geanng, and return on capital employed
The table below summarises these indicators

Key performance indicators 2009 2008
Revenue growth 1% 20%
Revenue growth — Metals Filtration (US dollars)  {32)% 1%
Revenue growth — Microfiltration 13% 23%
Revenue from new products 13% 11%
Operating margin — Group

(before restructuning in 2009) 5% 9%
Operating margin — Metals Filtration

{before restructunng in 2009) (6}% 5%
Operating margin — Microfiltration

{before restructunng in 2009) 14% 16%
Profit before tax growth

(before restructuring in 2009) {59)% 23%
Earnings per share growth

{before restructuring in 2009) {61)% 21%
Interest cover (before restructunng in 2009) 3 times 7 times
Ceanng 38% 40%

ROCE (before restructunng in 2009} 3% 8%

Impact of exchange rate movements

on performance

The international nature of the Group's business
means that relative movements in exchange rates
can have a significant impact on the reported
performance Sterling was weak compared with the
dollar for the first five months of the year generally
trading between 514 £ and $155 £ Sterling
strengthened mid-year and traded between $16 £
and $1 7 £ for the rest of the year The Group sold
forward the majonty of its UK business’s 2009 US
dollar revenue at the start of the financial year and
consequently achieved rates close to $15 £ on that
revenue This provided the Microfdtration division
with a benefit compared with the rates achieved in
2008 The average rate used for translating the results
of US operations into Sterling was $1 55 £ (2008
$191) This has the effect of increasing the losses in
Metals Filtration in 2009 and suppressing the profits
in 2008 compared with the underlying US dollar
results The Group's Euro operations were translated
at €112 £ (2008 €1 25 £) giving the European
operations of the Microfiltration division approximately
a 10% benefit compared with 2008

Finance costs

Net interest payable increased to £10 million

(2008 £0 7 million) Included wathin interest are
finance costs in relation to the defined benefit pension
scheme, which increased to £0 3 mullion (2008 credit
of £0 1 milion} in the year

Banking covenants were renegotiated to provide
operating flexibility in the difficult trading conditions
experienced in the year As a result the Group’s
banking margin increased by approximately 12%
offsetting some of the benefit of lower interest rates
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The Group took out nterest rate swaps to fix the
Interest rates on certain of its borrowings These will
provide some protection for the Group in the event
of interest rate rises or ancther spike in LIBOR as
occurred in late 2008 The contracts in place are
summarised below

Fixed rate Principal amount Maturity date

221% $5m 12 December 2010
243% $5m 12 December 2011
303% £3m Reduaing by £1 million

on each of 30 Novemnber
2010, 2011 and 2012

Interest cover before exceptional items was 3 times
{2008 7 times)

Tax

The Group tax charge on profits before exceptional
items was £0 6 mllion {2008 £1 3 million) After
recognising a tax credit of £0 2 mullion on the
exceptional items, the Group tax charge was £0 4
million (2008 £1 3 mullion) This 1s an effective rate of
35% (2008 31%), higher than the standard corporate
tax rate of 28%, as a result of disallowed expenditure
principally ansing from the abolition of Industnal
Butldings Allowances and the impact of state taxes
based on revenue in the US The tax charge comprises
current tax of £10 mullion (2008 £0 8 million) and

a deferred tax credit of £0 6 million (2008 charge of
£0 5 mitlion) The Group carries a deferred tax asset
in relation to the past tosses in its US operations and
the deficit on the pension fund The tax asset related
1o the past losses 15 mited to the amount expected
to be recovered in the foreseeable future

Shareholders’ funds

Shareholders’ funds at 30 Novernber 2009 were
£36 4 million (2008 £41 2 mullion), a reduction

of 12% over the prior year Shareholders’ funds
increased by the profit after tax of £0 7 million and
a write back of £0 1 million relating to share based
payments A charge to reflect the marked to market
value of interest rate hedges reduced shareholders’
funds by £0 2 midlion Shareholders’ funds were
reduced by exchange losses on retranslation of
foreign currencies of £0 9 million Dividends paid
of £10 miltion and actuarial losses in the pension
scheme net of deferred tax of £3 5 million reduced
shareholders’ funds

Cash flow

Net cash generated from operations was £6 0 rmullion
{2008 £4 2 million} Reductions in warking capital of
£1 3 million {2008 ncrease of £2 4 million) boosted
operating cash flow ahead of the prior year despite
the lower operating profits Tight control reduced
inventories across the Group by £1 5 millien (2008
increase of £1 2 million) Recewables and payables
both reduced principally due to lower revenue and
production in Metals Filtration

Net interest paid was £0 9 milion (2008 £0 7 million)
Although borrowings fell throughout the year, the
average net borrowings in 2009 were hugher than

in 2008 as debt increased in July 2008 with the
acquisition of Seal Analytical The higher interest cost
reflects the impact of increased average borrowings
and the interest rate adjustments described in the
Finance costs section above

Tax paid of £0 6 rmullion (2008 £0 6 million) was
lower than the current tax charge as a result of
repayments relating to prior penods

Capital expenditure reduced to £1 2 million (2008
£3'5 millton} After the year of significant investment
in 2008 which included the fit out of the new
Microfiltration facility, additional manufacturing
capacity installed in Metals Filtraton for new products,
and the capitalisation of asscciated development and
project management costs, the Group required much
lower investment in 2009 The principal investments
in 2009 were the completion of the manufacturing
capaaty in Metals Filtration and upgrading
manufacturing capabibity in Microfiltration

Borrowings and bank finance

At the year end, the Group had net borrowings of
£13 9 million (2008 £16 7 million) comprising gross
borrowings of £17 1 million (2008 £189 million) and
finance lease obligations of £0 2 million (2008 £0 3
million) offset by cash balances of £3 4 million (2008
£2 5 million) Borrowings of £9 1 million (2008 £98
million) (US515 O milion) are held in US dollars and
the weakerning of the US dollar relative 1o Sterling
reduced the Group's net debt by £0 4 milhon

(2008 increase of £2 4 million) compared with

the prior year

The Group put in place three year borrowing facilities
with Barclays Bank plc in july 2008 At 30 Novemnber
2009 the Group had unutilised borrowing facllities

of £16 million (2008 £1 3 rmillion}, an unutilised
overdraft facitity of £1 5 million (2008 £1 5 million}
and cash balances of £3 4 million (2008 £2 5 miltion)

The Group's gearing (net debt as a percentage of
shareholders” funds) reduced to 38% (2008 41%})

Finance and treasury policy

The treasury function at Porvair 1s managed centrally,
under Board supervision It s not a profit centre and
does not undertake speculative transactions It seeks
to mit the Group's exposure to trading 1n currencies
other than its operations’ local currency and to hedge
its Investments in currencies other than Sterling

The Group does not hedge against the impact of
exchange rate movements on the translation of
profits and losses of overseas operations
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Finance Director’s review continued

At the year end, the Group had US515 0 million
(2008 US$150 milion) of US dollar borrowings
exposure which hedged underlying US net tangibte
assets on the balance sheet of U524 0 milion {2008
US523 8 millron) 1n addition, the Group has a €16
million interest bearing debtor that was fully hedged
by borrowings in Euros

The Group finances its operattens by a combination
of share capital and retamned profits, and short and
long term loans The Group has adopted a policy of
foang the interest rate on between 40% and 60%
of rts borrowings

Pension schemes

The Group continues to support its defined benefit
pension scheme in the UK, which 1s closed to new
members, and to provide access to a defined
contribution schemne for its US employees and
other UK employees

The Group recorded a retirement benefit obligation
of £8 6 million (2008 £3 7 million) The increase
arose from an actuanial loss in the year of £4 9 million
(2008 £2 2 million) The contributions to the scheme
of £0 5 million were in line with the service cost and
finance charges incurred by the scheme

The increase in the deficit in the year arose from

a reduction in the discount rate used to value the
liabilities to 5 5% (2008 6 8%), a reduction in the
expected rate of return on the plan assets to 6 6%
(2008 6 8%} and the adoption of more up to date
mortality tables The mortality tables used are the
SAPS base tables with a 110% multiplier allowing
for future improvements of 1 5% per annum for
10 years and 1% thereafter The plan’s expected life
expectancy of a member at age 6515 19 7 years
(2008 18 2 years) for men and 22 6 years {2008
21 3 years) for women

A valuation of the assets and labilities of the closed
defined benefit scheme was completed in 2007

As a result of this review, the Group and the Trustees
agreed to alter the employer’s contributions from
15% of satary to 8% of salary plus an £80,000
contribution towards the running costs of the scheme
The Group also committed to make additional annual
contributions, to cover the past service deficit, of
£250,000 per annum increasing by 5% per annum
for eight years The first payment was made n
December 2007

The next actuanal valuation of the scheme will be
based on the pension scheme’s position at 31 March
2009 and the results of that valuation will be finalised
before 30 June 2010 It 1s possible that the outcome
of that valuation could require an increase in the
contributions to cover the past service defiait Any
such increase would be likely to take effect in the
2011 financial year

Principal nsks and uncertainties

There are a number of nsks and uncertainties,
described below, which could have a matertal impact
on the Group’s long term performance and prospects

Existing markets risk

The Graup serves the needs of a range of specialist
filtration markets, such that it 1s not dependent upon
any one market No single market represents more
than 25% of revenue However, four key markets
aviation filtration, energy and industrial process
filtration, environmental laboratory supplies and non-
ferrous metals filtration contribute more than 10% of
the Group’s revenue and the Group would be expesed
to a significant decline in any of these markets

The Aerospace market has traditionally been a very
steady business as the product cycles are very long
and the Group offers a broad range of products There
15 unllkel% to be such a rapid decline in the aerospace
market that the Group could not manage the
consequences over time

The energy and industnal process products serve a
range of customers who use filters as an mntegral part
of processes i thewr plants Sales are both for new
build and after market spares A sustained economic
downturn, as experienced n 2009, will affect demand
in this segment

Environmental laboratory supplies are chiefly sold

to laboratornes engaged in meeting the regulatory
requirements for clean water This market 15 expected
to grow as water regulations tighten throughout the
world and demand for clean water in the developing
world increases Whilst revenue will be affected by
access to capital in customer markets {municipal/utiiies
and industnial labs}) 1t i1s expected that the regulated
nature of this market will mitigate cyclical changes

Aluminium production suffered a severe contraction
in the first half of the year The Group reacted quickly
to the contraction in the market by reducing 1its cost
base and successfully converting its customers to a
new improved filter formulation The production of
alumimum s gradually moving to larger smelters in
regions of low cost energy The Group 15 developing
its sales presence accordingly

New products and markets risk

The Group invests significant amounts into the
development of new products Some of these new
products are at an early stage of development and
are driven either by environmental imperatives or
legislation There 1s a nisk that the products that the
Group 1s developing will either not be adopted as
part of the potential solutions or that the legislation
or regulation wall not develop in the way that the
Group anticipates
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The Group has brought a number of these products
to market 1n the last two years and is now much less
exposed to the nsks of new products However, the
Group maintains a close review of each of its major
developments and 1s not significantly exposed If the
market for any one product does not develop

Raw matenals, resources and facilities rnisk

The Group uses raw matenials in 1ts production
processes Prices for these raw materials can be
volatile and are affected by the cyclical movement in
commodity prices such as oil, alurmina, silicon carbide
and steel The Group's ability to pass on these price
fluctuations to its customers 1s to some extent
dependent on the contracts it has entered into and
the prevailing market conditions There may be times
when the Group's results are adversely affected by an
nability to recaver increases in raw material prices

The Group operates from a number of production
facilities, the largest facility generating approximately
one third of the Group's revenue A disaster, such as

a fire or flood, at any of the Group's facilities could
have a matenal impact on the Group's performance
The Group mantaihs insurance of its equipment and
facilities and carries business interruption insurance
to cover loss of profits In addition, the Group has
ISO 9001 and other industry specific quality control
systems which reduce the nisk that a disaster will occur

Competitive risk

Porvair operates in competitive global markets

The Group's achievement of its objectives 1s reliant
on its abibity to respond to many competitive factors
including, but not imited to, pricing, technological
Innovations, product quality, customer service,
manufacturing capabilities and the employment of
qualified personnel If the Group does not continue
to compete in its markets effectively by developing
innovative solutions for 1ts customers, it could lose
them and s results coutd be adversely affected

Technotogical risk

Porvair has a broad portfolio of products delivered
to a diverse range of markets The Group’s business
coutd be affected if it does not

* continue to develop new designs for its customers
that provide technical or cost advantages over its
competitors, and

+ develop new technologies and matenals that are
adopted by 1ts customers to provide improved
performance

The Group recagnises that certain of its competitors
are larger and have greater financial resources

This may enable them to deliver products on more
attractive terms than the Group or to invest more
resources, including research and development,

than the Group

The Group carefully selects its development prospects
and monitors ther progress carefully to maintain a
range of potential opportunities The nature of the
Group's development projects means that their
potential commercial or technical success cannot be
assessed with certainty throughout the development
process The ultimate commercial success of a project
can often only be judged when the development
cycle s close to completion

Financing nsk

The Group maintains a level of borrowing to finance
its operations Damage to, or loss of, its banking
relationships could have a matenal impact on the
profitability of the Group Te mitigate this risk, the
Group has sufficient long term facilities in place

for 1ts expected requirements It maintains a close
relationship with its bankers and carefully monitors
the restrictions on its borrowings

Treasury and exchange rate risk

The Group has operations in the UK, US, Germany
and China and sells its products throughout the world
As a result, the Group 15 exposed to fluctuations in
exchange rates The Group maintains certain of its
borrowings in US dollars to hedge its investments in
the US and enters into forward sales of its principal
foreign currency revenues to reduce the impact of
exchange rate movements

bability nsk

The Group manufactures products that are potentially
vital to the safe operation of its customers’ products
or processes A failure of the Greup's products could
expose the Group to loss as a result of claims made
by the Group's customers or users of their products
The Group seeks to minimise this risk through
limitations of Liability in 1its contracts and carrtes
insurance cover In the event that claims are made

Chnistopher Tyler, Group Finance Director
25 January 2010
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Directors’ report

The Directors are pleased to present ther Annual
Report and the audited accounts of the Group for
the year ended 30 November 2009

Principal activities and results

The Group's principal activities are in the areas of
specialist filtration and environmental technologies
m the UK, US, Germany and China The profit for
the financial year was £0 7 million (2008 profit

of £2 9 million)

Business review

The business is reviewed 1n the Chairman and

Chief Executive’s Statement on pages 4 to 8 and
the Finance Director’s review on pages 10 to 13

The Group’s strategy, objectives and likely future
developments of the business are discussed in detail
in the Chairman and Chief Executive’s Statement
The key performance indicators are defined in the
Finance Director’s review and discussed throughout
the Chairman and Chief Executive's Statement and
Finance Director's review The nisks and uncertainties
facing the business are described in the Finance
Director’s review on pages 12 and 13 and in the
financial risk management section below

Dividends

Anintenm dividend of 1 0 pence per share was paid
on 11 September 2009 The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of 125 pence per
share (2008 125 pence per share) on 11 june 2010
to shareholders on the register on 30 Apnl 2010, the
ex-dividend date 1s 28 April 2010 This makes a total
dwidend for the year of 2 25 pence per share (2008
2 25 pence per share)

Directors and their interests
The names and biographical details of the Directors
are set out on page 14

In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Michaet Gatenby and Andrew Walker retire by
rotation and offer themselves for re-election

During the year, the Group maintained insurance
providing hiability cover for its Directors

Details of all the beneficial and non-beneficial
interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company, share options and service contracts
are set out in the Report of the Remuneration
Committee on pages 22 to 25 None of the
Directors had a matenal interest in any contract
of significance in relation to the Company or

its subsidiaries during the year

Following the introduction on 1 October 2008 of
the new conflicts of interest regime for directors
contained in the Companies Act 2006, the Company
put in place procedures to deal with conflicts of
Interest and these have operated effectively Since
that date, the Company has followed the guidance

on conflicts of interest 1ssued by the Association
of General Counsel and Company Secretaries of
the FTSE

Research and development

The Group cantinues to undertake a research

and development programme with the objective
of identifying and developing new matenials and
products which have the potential to transform
the growth of the Group The cost to the Group

in the year under review was £2 7 million {2008
£3 0 million), £2 S million (2008 £2 2 million)

was written off to the income statement and

£0 2 million (2008 £0 8 million) was capitalised
as an intangible fixed asset The expenditure s of
a development nature and is largely undertaken
in-house rather than by third parties In accordance
with International Accounting Standard (1AS) 38,
‘Intangible Assets’, development expenditure Is
largely written off as incurred but where a product
has been shown to be technically feasible and the
Group can demonstrate, through customer
acceptance or otherwise, that there 1s a market for
the product, then further development expenditure
1s capitalised and written off over the expected

life of the product

Share capital

The Company has one ciass of ordinary share capital
which carnes no right to fixed ncome All of the
Company's shares in issue are fully paid and each
share carries the nght to vote at general meetings
of the Company There were no changes in the
Company's 1ssued share capital during the year

Further details of the share capital of the Company
are given In note 22 to the financial staterments on
pages 53 to 55

There are no specific restrictions on the size of

a holding in the Company nor on the transfer of
shares, which are both governed by the provistons of
the Articles of Association and prevailing regulation
and legislation governing UK listed compamies The
Directors are not aware of any agreements between
holders of the Company’s shares that may result in
restrictions on voting nghts No person has special
nghts of control over the Company’s share capital

The appointment and reptacement of Directors

is governed by the Articles of Association, the
Companies Act 2006, the Combmned Code and
related regulation and legislation applying to UK
isted companies The Articles of Association require
there to be a minimum of three Directors {and
permit a maximum of 15) and provide that the
business of the Company shall be managed by the
Board of Directors which may exercise all powers
of the Company The Board of Directors may make
such arrangements as they see fit to delegate those
powers except that the Board retains specific
authonty over the matters outlined in the Matters
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Directors’ report continued

reserved for the Board which are summarised in
the Board of Directors section n the Corporate
governance report on pages 26 to 28

Each year the Board seeks shareholder approval

to renew the Board's authority to allot relevant
securities The Company 1s a party to a number

of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate
upon a change of control of the Company such as
commercial contracts, banking agreements, property
lease arrangements and employee share plans

None of these are considered to have a significant
impact on the business of the Group

The Directors are not aware of any agreements
between the Company and its Directors or employees
that provide for compensation for loss of office

or employment in the event of a takeover of

the Company

Substantial shareholders

As at 25 January 2010 the Company has been
notified of the following substantial shareholdings
comprising 3% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company

Ordinary

shares  Percentage

number %

GGG Spa 8,823,898 2097
M&G Group Limited 6,080,987 74 45
Impax Environmental ple 4,432,550 10 54
Aviva Investors 3,465,557 824
Gartmore Investment Management 1,963,000 467
Cavendish Asset Management 1,620,000 385
Standard Life 1,360,000 323

Corporate governance

The disclosure requirements set out in the
Disclosure and Transparency Rutes, paragraph 7 2,
are included within the Corporate governance report
on pages 26 to 28

Employment policies

The Group's employment policies are described
in the Corporate and social responsibility report
on page 21

Donations

The Group made a number of charitable donations
totalling £14,000 (2008 £15,000) during the year
Substantially all chantable donations were made

to local charities operating in Hendersonville, North
Carolina In accordance with Company policy, no
political donations were made in the year (2008 £nil)

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company 15 to
be held on Tuesday 13 Aprit 2010 The notice for
this meeting and proxy forms have been sent to
shareholders separately

Resolution 4 and 5 — Re-election of Michael
Gatenby and Andrew Walker as Directors

The Articles of Association require certain of the
Directors to retire by rotation at each Annual
General Meeting At the Meeting, Michael Gatenby
and Andrew Walker will retire and offer themselves
for re-election Resclutions 4 and 5 propose therr
re-election Brief biographies of the Directors are
set out on page 14 of the Annual Report

Resclution 7 and 8 — Directors’ authority to allot
shares (ordinary resolution} and disapply pre-
emption rights (special resolution)

Resolution 7 authorises the Directors to allot shares
under section 557 of the Companies Act 2006
Paragraph 7 1 gives the Directors customary authonty
to allot ordinary shares or grant such subscription
or conversion rights as are contemplated by sections
551(1)(a) and (b) respectively of the Companies
Act 2006 up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£335,944, being an amount equal to one third of
the Company's issued share capital as at 25 January
2010 and the amount of all outstanding options As
at 25 January 2010, the Company did not hold any
treasury shares Paragraph 7 2 gives the Directors
authority to 1ssue an additional aggregate nominal
amount of up to £280,491, being an amount equal
to one third of the Company's 1ssued share capital
as at 25 January 2010 This additional authonity is
to be applied to nghts 1ssues only and 1s 1in accordance
with the recommendations of the Rights Issue
Review Group and the Association of British Insurers
{the "ABI")

The Directors do not currently intend to conduct

a nights 1ssue but, should circumstances change

and the Directors do exercise such further authority,
they intend to comply with the ABI recommendations
and stand for re-election at the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company If they wish to remain in
office The authorities granted under Resolution 7
shall expire at the next Annual General Meeting

of the Company Resolution 7 replaces a similar
resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting

of the Company held on 7 Apnl 2009

If the Directors wish to allet unissued shares or
other equity securtties for cash or sell any shares
which the Company holds i treasury following a
purchase of its own shares pursuant to the authonty
in Resolution 9, the Companies Act 2006 requires
that such shares or other equity secunties are
offered first to existing shareholders in proportion
to their existing holding Resolution 8 asks
shareholders to grant the Directors authonty to
allot equity securities or sell treasury shares for cash
up to an aggregate nominal value of £42,073 (being
5% of the Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital
as at 25 January 2010} without first offering the
secunities to existing sharehclders The resolution
also disapplies the statutory pre-emption provisions
In connection with a nights 1ssue and altows the
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Directors, 1n the case of a rights 1ssue, to make
appropriate arrangements in relation to fractional
entitlements or other legal or practical probtems
which might anse The Directors confirm that they
do not intend to i1ssue in excess of 7 5% of the
Company's issued ordinary share capital within any
rolling three year period without prior consultation
with shareholders The authority will expire at the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company

In addition, there are three items of special business

Resclution 9 — Purchases of own shares by the
Company (special resolution)

Resolution 9 to be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting seeks authority from shareholders for the
Company to make market purchases of its own
ordinary shares, such authority being limited to the
purchase of 10% of the ordinary shares in 1ssue as
at 25 January 2010 The maximum price payable for
the purchase by the Company of its own ordinary
shares will be limited to the higher of (1) 5% above
the average of the middle market quotations of the
Company's ardinary shares, as derived from the
Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange,
for the five business days prior to the purchase and
(1} the hugher of the pnice of the last independent
trade of an ordinary share and the highest current
independent bid for an ordinary share as derived
from the London Stock Exchange Trading System
SETS The minimum price payable by the Company
for the purchase of 1ts own ordinary shares will be
2p per share (being the nomunal value of an ordinary
share) The authonity to purchase the Company's
own ordinary shares will only be exercised if the
Directors consider that there is likely to be a
beneficial impact on earnings per ordinary share
and that it 1s 1n the best interests of the Company
at the time The resolution renews a similar resolution
passed at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 7 Apnl 2009 Any ordinary shares
5o purchased by the Company will be held in
treasury by the Company and will remain in 1ssue
and be capable of being re-sold by the Company or
used in connection with certain of its share schemes

Options to subscribe for up to 2,772,668 ordinary
shares have been granted and are outstanding as at
25 January 2010 (being the latest practicable date
prior to publication of this document) representing
6 2% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital at that
date (excluding shares held in treasury) If the
Directors were to exercise in full the power for
which they are seeking authority under Resolution
9 the options outstanding as at 25 January 2010
would represent 6 8% of the ordinary share capital
(excluding shares held i treasury) in issue following
such exercise

Resolution 10 — Adoption of new Articles of
Asscciation of the Company {special resolution)

It 1s proposed in Resclution 10 tc adopt new Articles
of Association [the "New Articles”) in order to update
the Company's current Articles of Association (the
“"Current Articles”) primanly to take account of the
implementation on 1 October 2009 of the last parts
of the Companies Act 2006 and also the coming
into force of The Compantes (Shareholders’ Rights)
Regulations 2009 Generally, the opportunity has
been taken to bring clearer language into the New
Articles and In some areas to conform the language
of the New Articles with that used in the model
articles for public companies set out in secondary
legislation In addition, the following changes have
been made

The Company’s objects

Prior to 1 October 2009, the provisions regulating
the operations of the Company were set out in the
Company’s memorandum and the Current Articles
The Company's memorandum contained, among
other things, the objects clause which set out the
scope of the activities the Company was authorised
to undertake This was drafted to give a wide scope

The Companies Act 2006 has significantly reduced
the constitutional sigrificance of a company's
memorandum and provides that a memorandum
will record only the names of subscribers and the
number of shares each subscriber has agreed to take
in the company Under the Companies Act 2006 for
companies existing at 1 October 2009, the objects
clause and all other provisions which were contaned
i a company's memorandum have, since that date,
been deemed to be contained in that company's
articles of association However, a company can
remove some of these provisions by special
resolution

The Companies Act 2006 states that unless a
company's articles of association provide otherwise,
a company’s objects are unrestricted This abolishes
the need for companies to have objects clauses For
this reason the Company 1s proposing to remove its
objects clause which, by virtue of the Companies Act
2006, 15 to be treated as forming part of the Current
Artictes Resolution 10 confirms the removal of these
provisions for the Company As the effect of this
resolution will be to remove the statements imported
from the Company's memorandum of association
regarding bimited Liability and the location of the
Company's registered office, the New Articles also
contain express provisions reflecting these statements

Articles which duplicate statutory provisions
Provisions in the Current Articles which replicate
provisions contained 1n the Companies Act 2006
are 1 the main to be removed in the New Articles
This 15 1n Line with the approach advocated by the
Government that statutory provisions should not
be duplicated 1n a company's constitution
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Directors’ report continued

Change of name

Under the Comparues Act 1985, a company could
only change its name by special resolution Under
the Companies Act 2006 a company will be able to
change its name by other means provided for by
its articles of association To take advantage of this
provision, the New Articles enable the Directors to
pass a resclution to change the Company's name

Authorised share caprtal and unissued shares

The Companies Act 2006 abolishes the requirement
for a company to have an authorised share capital
and the New Articles reflect this The Directors will
still be Limited as to the number of shares they can
at any time allot because allotment authority
continues to be required under the Compantes Act
2006, save in respect of employee share schemes

Redeemable shares

Under the Comparies Act 1985 if a company wished
to 1ssue redeemable shares, it had to include in its
articles the terms and manner of redemption The
Comparues Act 2006 enables directors to determine
such matters instead provided they are so authorised
by the articles of association The New Articles
contain such an authonsation The Company has no
plans to 1ssue redeemable shares but if it did so the
Directors would need shareholders’ authority to
Issue new shares In the usual way

Authority to purchase own shares, consolidate and
sub-dvide shares, and reduce share capral

Under the Companies Act 1985 a company required
specific enabling provisions in 1ts articles of association
to purchase 1ts own shares, to consolidate or sub-
divide 1ts shares and to reduce its share capital or
other undistributable reserves as well as shareholder
authority to undertake the relevant action The
Current Articles include these enabling provisions
Under the Companies Act 2006 a company will only
require shareholder authority to do any of these
things and 1t will no longer be necessary for articles
of association to contain enabling provisions
Accordingly, the relevant enabling provisicns have
been removed in the New Articles

Use of seals and execution of documents

Under the Companies Act 1985 a company required
authonty in its articles to have an official seal for
use abroad Under the Companies Act 2006 such
authonty will no longer be required Accordingly,
the relevant authorisation has been removed in

the New Articles .

The New Articles provide an alternative option

for execution of documents (other than share
certificates) Under the New Articles, when the seal
15 affixed to a document 1t may be signed by one
authorised person 1n the presence of a witness,
whereas previously the requirement was for signature
by either a Director and the Secretary or two
Directors or such other person or persons as the
Directors may approve

Suspension of registration of share transfers

The Current Articles permit the Directors to suspend
the registration of transfers Under the Compantes
Act 2006 share transfers must be registered as soon
as practicable The power in the Current Articles to
suspend the registration of transfers 1s inconsistent
with this requirement Accordingly, this power has
been removed in the New Articles

Vacation of office by Directors

The Current Articles specify the arcumstances

in which a Director must vacate office The New
Articles update these prowvisions to reflect the
approach taken on mentai and physical incapacity
in the model articles for public companies set out
in secondary legistation

Voting by proxies on a show of hands

The Shareholders' Rights Regulations have amended
the Companies Act 2006 so that it now provides
that each proxy appointed by a member has one
vote on a show of hands unless the proxy 1s appointed
by more than one member in which case the proxy
has one vote for and one vote against if the proxy
has been instructed by one or more members to
vote for the resolution and by one or more members
to vote agamst the resolution The New Articles
reflect these changes

Voting by corporate representatives

The Shareholders’ Rights Regulations have amended
the Companies Act 2006 n order to enable multiple
representatives appointed by the same corporate
member to vote in different ways on a show of
hands and a poll The New Articles contan provisions
which reflect these amendments

Electronic conduct of meetings

Amendments made to the Companies Act 2006

by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations specifically
provide for the holding and conducting of electronic
meetings The Current Articles have been amended
to reflect more closely the retevant provisions

Adjournments for lack of quorum

Under the Companies Act 2006 as amended by the
Sharehaolders' Rights Regulations, general meetings
adjourned for lack of quorum must be held at least
10 clear days after the original meeting The Current
Articles have been changed to reflect this requirerment

Voting record date

Under the Companies Act 2006 as amended by the
Shareholders’ Rights Regulations, the Company must
determine the right of members to vote at a general
meeting by reference to the register not more than
48 hours before the time for the holding of the
meeting, not taking account of days which are not
working days The Current Articles have been
amended to reflect this requirement
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Resalution 11 — Calling of general meetings

{special resolution)

Resolution 11 to be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting seeks authority from shareholders to hold
general meetings {other than Annual General
Meetings) on 14 days’ clear notice This is perrmissible
under the Current Articles and the Companies Act
2006 However, pursuant to the EU Shareholders'
Rights Directive and in accordance with published
guidance from the Department of Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform, specific shareholder
approval 1s required annually The Directors believe
that there may be arcumstances in which it will be
in the interests of the Company to be able to convene
meetings at such short notice Accordingly, the
Directors believe that it 1s important for the Company
to retawn this flexibility Resolution 117 renews a
similar resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 7 April 2009

Creditor payment policy

The indwidual operating companies are responsible
for agreeing the terms and conditions under which
they conduct transactions with their suppliers It is
Group policy that payments to suppliers should be
made in accordance with these terms provided that
the supplier 15 also complying with all relevant
terms and conditions The trade creditor days of
the Company at 30 Novemnber 2009 were 42 days
{2008 44 days)

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report
and the financial statements in accordance with
appticable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year Under
that law the Directors have elected to prepare the
Group financial statements 1n accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Umon, and the parent
company financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements untess
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period
In preparing these financial statements, the
Drrectors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European
Urion and applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any mater:al
departures disclosed and explained in the Group
and parent company financial statements
respectively, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presurne
that the company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficsent to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and
the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with
the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulations
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevent:on and detection
of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mamntenance
and integrity of the Company's website Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legistation in other junisdicttons

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions
are listed on page 14 confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge

+ the Group financial statements, which have been
prepared tn accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU, give a true and fawr view of the assets,
habilittes, financial pasition and profit of the
Group, and

+ the Chairman and Chief Executive’s Statement, the
Finance Director's review and the Director’s report,
when taken together, include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business
and the position of the Group, together with a
description of the prnncipal nisks and uncertainties
that it faces

Directors’ responsibility for provision

of information to the Auditors

So far as each Director 15 aware, there 15 no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s Auditors
are unaware, and each Director has taken all the
steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in
order to make tumself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's
Auditors are aware of that information
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Directors’ report continued

Financial risk management

The Group's aperations expose it to a variety of
financial nisks that include the effects of changes
in debt market prices, credit risk, iquidity nsk and
interest rate sk The Group has in place a nisk
management programme that seeks to bmit the
adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group by monitoring levels of debt finance and the
related finance costs

Throughout the year the Group maintamed some

of 1ts borrowings at floating rates of interest and
was therefore exposed to movements in the interest
rates of both the US dollar and Sterling The Group
has fixed certain of its interest rate exposure on its
borrowings for up to three years The Group will
apply hedge accounting to these transactions

The Group seeks to mirumise its exposure to the
impact of exchange rate movements on its net
investments and seeks to maintain borrowings in

US dollars equivalent to at least 60% of the carrying
value of its US dollar net tangible assets in its

US operations

The UK operations of the business generate
significant revenues in US dollars and the Group
seeks to minimise the impact of movements in the
US dollar exchange rate on the value of these US
dollar flows by using financial instruments to fix the
future value of the US dollars The Group does not
apply hedge accounting to these transactions

Given the size of the Group, the Directors have not
delegated the responsibility of monitoring financial
risk management to a sub-committee of the Board
The policies set by the Board of Directors are
implemented by the Company’s finance department
The department has a policy and procedures manual
that sets out spearfic guidetines to manage interest
rate nisk, credit risk and crcumstances where it
would be appropriate to use financial instruments
to manage these

Liquidity nisk

The Group actively maintains a mixture of long-
term and short-term debt finance that 1s designed
to ensure the Group has sufficient available funds
for operations and planned expansions

Price risk

The Group Is exposed to cornmodity price risk as a
result of its operations The Group buys certain raw
materials and energy on long term contracts to
mimimise its exposure to fluctuation in commodity
prices In all cases these contracts result in the
ultimate delivery and use by the Group of the
commodity The Group has no exposure to equity
securities price nsk as it holds no listed or other
equity investments

Credit risk

The Group has implemented policies that require
appropriate credit checks on potential customers
before sales are made Debt finance 1s very rarely
used and 1s reviewed on a case by case basis by
the Board of Directors

Interest rate cash flow risk

The Group has both interest bearing assets and
terest bearing liabilities Interest bearing assets
include only a commercial loan, which earns interest
at fixed rate The Group changed its policy during
the year towards 1ts interest rate exposure and now
maintains between 40% and 60% of its borrowings
at a fixed interest rate The Directors will revisit the
appropriateness of this policy shoutd the Group's
operations change in size or nature

Going concern

After having made appropriate enquiries, including
a review of the Group’s budget for 2010 and its
medium term plans, the Directors of Porvair ptc
have a reasonable expectation that the Group and
Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing these accounts

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their
willingness to continue n office and a resolution
concerning their re-appointment will be put to the
Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board C 0 \% b‘[

Chnistopher Tyler, Company Secretary
25 January 2010
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Corporate and social responsibility report

Policy

The Board's policy 1s to enhance shareholder value
in an ethical and socially responsible manner The
Board believes that operating efficiently with high
quality standards includes promoting high standards
of health and safety and helping to protect the
environment As a minimum the Group operations
are required to meet the legal and regulatory
requirements of operating in their lecal jurisdiction

Employment policies

We pride ourselves on our people and their ability
to provide innovative solutions for our customers
Porvair 1s committed to employing talented people
and enabling them to reach therr full potential We
provide employment in a wide range of disciplines
associated with the design and manufacture of
filttration and separation equipment

The Group involves employees through both formal
and informal systems of communication and
consultation Managers have a responsibility to
communicate effectively and to promote a better
understanding by emptoyees of the actinties and
performance of the Group Employee consultative
committees regularly meet to ensure that
management obtains representative views of
employees concerming any decisions that affect
them Information relating to trading, company
strategy and any other matters of significance
are communicated to all employees through

local briefings

It 1s the Group’s policy to recruit, train, promote

and treat all personnel on grounds solely based on
ndividual ability and performance These principles
are applied regardless of sex, religion, age, nationality
or ethmc origin

Applications for employment by disabled persons
are always considered in full, bearing in mind the
respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicant
concerned In the event of members of staff
becoming disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure
that their employment with the Group continues
and the appropriate training 1s arranged It i1s the
policy of the Group that the traming, career
development and promation of a disabled person
should, so far as possible, be identical to that of
all other employees

Health and safety

The Group recognises its clear responsibilities for
the health and safety of 1ts employees and to the
communities in which the Group operates A health
and safety committee, comprising representatives
frorn management and employees, regularly
reviews and inspects the conditions in which

our employees wark

The Group’s insurers carry out periodic reviews
of the Group’s aperations as part of therr nisk
assessments and the recommendations of the

consultants are generally implemented in full Local
management 1s responsible for implementing policies
that protect and improve the health and safety of
their employees Discretionary health and safety
benefits for employees include the availabibty of
gyms and on site nursing staff at certain operations

The Group's regular reporting procedures include

a review of accidents in the workplace During the
year the Group has not had any accidents in its
operations resulting in lost days from the workplace

The environment
Many of the products developed by Porvair are used
to the benefit of the environment Examples include

- Seal water analysis equipment, which 1s used, inter
alia, to ensure drinking water 1s fit for consumption,
and to analyse sea and river water for signs of
pollution or changes to normal nineral composition,

* The newly developed molten atuminium filter,
which won the Amenican Ceramic Society Corporate
Environmental Achievement Award for sts improved
environmental profile, and

« The Group’s nuclear filters, which have been
fitted to a range of demonstration plants being
assessed as part of the decontamination and
decommissioning work being carned out at major
US and UK nuclear waste sites

The Group consistently considers methods of
improving its environmental profile Environmental
impacts are managed in conformity with local
regulatory requirements The Group’s manufacturing
processes have only a limited potential emissions
impact The Group uses solvents in certain of its
processes and, in 1ts Metals Filtration division,
manages the emissions from ts kiln finng operations

Recent developments in the Croup’s management
of emissions include the installation of a 100%
solvent recovery system in the Group’s new
operations in Fareham, and enhanced emissions
control processes i the Metals Filtration operations,
to capture emissions from the new alummum filter’s
production In addition, the Group has undertaken
2 full review of the environmental impact of the
Group's principal Metals Filtration operation

The operation was found to have made very little
impact con the local environment and the minor
recommendations made by the consultants have
been implemented

Porvair and the local community

The management of each operation Is aware of
its role within its tocal communities They seek to
recrut locally and retain a skilled local workforce
and are encouraged to build relationshups with
local community orgamisations
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

This part of the report of the Remuneration
Committee 1s unaudited

This report complies with the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance published in June 2008 (the
“Combined Code"} and sets out the Group’s
remuneration policy and details of Directors’
remuneration A resolution to approve this report
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting in
April 2010

The Committee

During the year, the Committee comprised Michael
Gatenby, Charles Matthews and Andrew Walker
(Chairman) The Committee determines the pay
and benefits of the Executive Directors, whilst the
remuneratton of the Non-Executive Directors is
determined by the Executive Directors The
Committee uses external published data as part of
its assessment of the pay and benefits awarded to
the Executive Directors

Remuneration policy

The rermit of the Commuttee s to ensure that the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
are competitive and designed to attract, retain and
motivate managers of high quality These consist of
a base salary, a discretionary annual cash bonus, the
grant of share options and long term incentives, and
the provision of other benefits including pension
arrangements, lfe insurance, health insurance and
company car

Service contracts

The Executive Directors have rolling contracts with
the Company which can be terminated on giving
twelve months’ notice This 1s considered to be an
appropnate balance between flexibility and
commitment on both parties The Non-Executive
Directors receive letters of appointment, and are
subject to periodic re-election in accordance with
the Articles of Association at the Annual General
Meeting in common with the Executive Directors
They do not participate in any share option scheme,
bonus or pension arrangements

Annual bonus

Bonus payments to Executive Directors are made at
the discretion of the Committee with reference to
individual performance, the achievement of Group

profit targets and total shareholder returns When
triggered, they are cash payments made annually in
arrears and are not pensionabte Awards are capped at
50% of base salary There will not be any bonuses paid
in 2010 relating to the Group's profit targets in 2009

This part of the Report of the Remuneration
Committee 1s audited

Pension entitlements

The Porvair plc Pension and Death Benefit Plan is a
contributory scheme, which is now closed to new
employees Pension benefits from the plan were
subject to the HMRC earnings cap and the Group has
continued to maintain an earnings cap since the
HMRC limits were removed in April 2006 Pension
benefits up to the capped limit were provided in the
peniod for Ben Stocks by the Plan Ben Stocks is
entitled to the same pension benefits from the Plan as
all other members Only basic salary is pensionable

Ben Stocks also receives a 15% contribution to a Self
Invested Pension Plan {"SIPP") on the difference
between hus full salary and the capped mit covered
by The Porvatr plc Pension and Death Benefit Plan
Pension benefits are provided for Christopher Tyler
by a contribution of 15% of full salary to a
stakeholder scheme funded by the Company

Life assurance benefits covering a lump sum of four
times salary on death in service and a 20% spouse’s
pension are provided for Ben Stocks and Christopher
Tyler by the Porvarr plc Pension and Death Benefit
Plan Ben Stocks and Christopher Tyler are covered
by the Group’s permanent health tnsurance scheme

The accumulated total accrued pension figures
shown n the table below represent the annual
amount of accrued pension payable from The Porvair
plc Pension and Death Benehit Plan on retirerment at
normal retirement age, based on Ben Stocks’ service
to, and pensionable earnings at, the relevant year
end The increase in transfer value of the pensions is
calculated on the basis of actuarial advice and 1s net
of Directors’ contributtons in the year

Increase in

Increase in transfer value

Increase in accrued Transfer Transter n respect

Accrued accrued pension value of value of of accrued

pension at pension dunng the acerued acorued  pension over

30 Novernber during the year net of pension at pension at  the year net

2009 year mflation 30 Novemnber 30 Novernber  of Director s

£ per £ per £ per 2009 2008  contnbutions

annum annum annum £ £ £

B DW Stocks 19,562 2,556 1,706 114,892 61,896 2,724

The Company paid £19,476 (2008 £19,263) to a SIPP for Ben Stocks and £26,238 (2008 £25,650) to a stakeholder
pension plan for Chnistopher Tyler in respect of the financial year 2009
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Directors’ remuneration
The following table shows the total remuneration of the Directors for the year

Basic satary Total

and fees Bonus Benehts 2009

2009 £000 £000 £000 £ 000

Executive Directors

B D'W Stocks 251 - 22 273

CPTyler 175 - 19 194
Non-Executive Directors

M R B Gatenby 26 26

C L Matthews 67 67

A JWalker 26 26

545 - 41 586

Basic salary Total

and fees Bonus Benefits 2008

2008 £ 000 £000 £000 £ 000

Executive Directors

B DW Stocks 245 74 22 341

C P Tyler 171 51 19 241
Non-Executive Directors

MR B Gatenby 25 25

C L Matthews 66 66

A | Walker 25 25

532 125 41 698

Benefits include company cars, medical insurance, life insurance and permanent health insurance

Share options
Share options are awarded to Executive Directors at the discretion of the Committee, usually immediately after the
announcement of the Group's results

Details of the share options held by the Executive Directors at the end of the year, which have been granted under
Porvair Share Option Schemes, are as follows

Granted/

AL 30 (Exercised/ AL 30

November lapsed) in November Grantf Date from

2008 the year 2005 Exercise exercise which
Numbrer Number Nurmber price Scheme date exerusable Expiry date
B DW Stacks 70,000 70,000 11100p 1997 28/01/2006 28/01/2010
130,000 150,000 98 00p 1997 25/01/2008 25/01/2012
76,330 76,330 13100p 2005 EMI 27/01/2009 27/01/2016
123,670 123,670 13100p 2005 27/01/2009 27/01/2016
100,000 100,000 138 00p 2005 02/02/2010 02/02/2017
100,000 100,000 114 00p 2005 10/03/2011 10/03/2018
452,166 452,166 200p LTSP2008 10/04/2011 10/04/2018
11,750 11,750 80 00p SAYE 01/10/2011 01/04/2012
200,000 200,000 69 50p 2005 30/01/2009 30/01/2012 30/01/2019
CPTyler 60,000 60,000 101 50p 1997 16/09/2007 28/01/2011
100,000 100,000 98 00p 1997 25/01/2008 25/01/2012
76,330 76,33C  13100p 2005EMI 27/01/2009 27/01/2016
23,670 23,670 13100p 2005 27/01/2009 27/01/2016
50,000 50,000 13800p 2005 02/02/2010 02/02/2017
50,000 50,000 11400p 2005 10/03/2011 10/03/2018
315,207 315,207 200p LTSP2008 10/04/2011 10/04/2018
11,750 11,750 8000p SAYE 01/10/20171 01/04/2012

700,000 100,000 69 50p 2005 30/01/2009 30/01/2072 30/01/2019
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Report of the Remuneration Committee continued

Options granted under the 1997 scheme can only be exercised i the Commuttee 15 satisfied that over a penod of not
less than three years, commencing on the date of grant, there has been an increase in the Group’s earnings per share of
at least 2% per annum above the growth in the Retail Prices Index over the same peniod Only HMRC approved options
can now be 1ssued under this scheme Under the 1997 scheme no Director may accumulate an 1ssued value of more
than four years' salary in unexpired options

Options granted between 2005 and 2008 under the 2005 scheme can only be exercised wn full if the Committee is
satisfied that over a penod of either three or four years from the date of grant there has been an increase in the Group's
earmings per share of at least 10% per annum above the growth in the Retail Prices Index over the same period 25% of
the options awarded can be exercised f the Committee 15 satisfred that over a peniod of erther three or four years from
the date of grant there has been an increase in the Group's earnings per share of at least 5% per annum above the
growth in the Retail Pnces Index over the same penod A sliding scale operates between the two limits If the vesting
conditions are not met after four years then the options lapse For options granted tn 2009 and later similar performance
conditions apply, except that the conditions will have to be met after three years otherwise the options will lapse

Under the 2005 scheme, except under exceptronal circumstances, no Director may be granted options to the value of
more than one year’s salary per annum

Options granted in 2008 under the Porvair Long Term Share Plan 2008 can only be exercised in full if the Commuittee 1s
satisfied that

a) i the financial year ending 30 Novemnber 2010 the Group has achieved earnings per share of at least 116 pence per
share, and

b) the peak share price in the year to 10 April 2011 has been at least 245 pence for at least 20 working days
25% of the award will vest if the condition in a) above 1s satisfied and the share price in the year to 10 April 2011 has

been at least 205 pence for at least 20 working days A sliding scale operates between a peak share price of 205 pence

and 245 pence No shares will vest if the share price does not reach 205 pence for at least 20 working days in the year
to 10 Apnl 2011

The Commuttee retains the discretion to vary the performance conditions on any future awards

Options were granted in 2007 and 2008 under a Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme The options were issued at a 20%
discount to the market price at the date of grant The options have no performance conditions

The market price of the Company's ordinary shares at 30 November 2009 was 45 pence (2008 62 5 pence)
The range of market prices during the year was 45 pence to 77 pence

The Directors did not exercise any share options in the year ended 30 November 2009

This part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee 1s unaudited

Total shareholder return

The following graphs chart total sharehalder return against the FTSE SmallCap Index for the last five years and the last

year, with both rebased to 100 Given the size of the Greup and different sectors it operates in, the FTSE SmallCap Index
15 the togical comparator index

5 year total shareholder return 1 year total shareholder return
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Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests at 30 November 2009 and 30 Novernber 2008 of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the
Comnpany are shown below There have been no changes in those interests up to the date of this report

2009 2008
Ordinary Share Ordinary Share
shares options shares cptions
Executive Directors

B D W Stocks 100,283 1,283,916 98,070 1,083916
CPTyler 24,000 786,957 9,500 686,957

Non-Executive Directors
MR B Gatenby 14,000 - 74,000 -
C L Matthews 10,000 - 10,000 -
A | Walker 4,236 - 4,119 -

Andrew Walker, Chairman Remuneration Committee
25 January 2010
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Co rporate governance

Cormpliance

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company
has complied with the provisions of the Combined
Code (2008} on Corporate Governance (which s
publicly available at www frc org) throughout the
year except where explicitly set out below

Board of Directors

The Board consists of five Directors, two Executive
Directors and three Non-Executive Directors The
Board 1s chawred by Charles Matthews Ben Stocks
15 the Group Chief Executive and Christopher Tyler
15 the Group Finance Director Michaet Gatenby,
Charles Matthews and Andrew Walker are independent
Non-Executive Directors Michael Gatenby 1s the
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director The
Board considers that Charles Matthews continues
to be an independent Non-Executive Director after
his appontment as Chairman

The Board has a fixed schedule for reviewing the
Group's operating performance and has other
specific responsibilities reserved to it, which include

- Approval of the published financial results and
dividends,

« Appointments to the Board and other Board
committees,

* Approval of the strategic direction of the business,
- Approval of expenditure over certain imits,
+ Approval for acquisitions and disposals,

- Approval of treasury policy and significant new
financing,

- Approval of the funding policies of the defined
benefit pension scheme

The Executive Directors manage the day to day
operations of the business within the framework

set out by the Board Outside the formal schedule

of Board meetings the Chairman and Non-Executive
Directors make themselves available for consultation
with the Executive team as necessary

Procedural compliance 1s monitored by the Company
Secretary and the Directors’ appointment and
removal is a matter for the Board as a whole
Independent professional advice and training are
available to

all the Dwectars The Seruar Nan-Executive Director,
Michael Gatenby, 15 available for consultation with
shareholders through the Company Secretary, by
written submission The Executive Directors and

the Charrman have met with the Company’s major
shareholders and other potential investors on a
regular basis and have reported to the Board on
those meetings

The Non-Executive Directors’ terms of appomtment
do not specify a specific penod for their appointment
and therefore the terms are not 1n compliance with
provision B 16 of the Code, however in accordance
with the Articles of Association, one third of the
Directors who have served throughout the year
retire by rotation each year and, if eligible, may
offer themselves for re-election at the Annuat
General Meeting All newly appointed Directors
offer themselves for etection at the first Annual
General Meeting following their appointment

On joining the Board a new Director recewves
appropriate induction including meeting with other
Directors, visiting the Group's principal operations
and meeting with senior management and the
Group's principal advisers

The Board has put i place a procedure by which any
Director may take independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company, in furtherance of his
duties as a Director of the Company

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’
hability insurance

The Board has a schedule of six pre-arranged meetings
duning the year In addition such other meetings as
are required are arranged to deat with specific 1ssues
or transactions During the year there was full
attendance at all pre-arranged Board meetings

The Board undertook a ngorous self assessment
review dunng the year to consider its own performance
The Senior Non-Executive Director mantains regular
contact with the other \ndependent Non-Executive
Directors and the Executive Directors, sufficient to
monitor the performance of the Chairman The
Chairman, in consultation with the Executive
Directors, monitors the performance of the
Non-Executive Directors

Audit Commuttee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company The Chairman of the Audit Committee
15 Michael Gatenby The Committee includes
Charles Matthews, the Chairman of the Company

The Audit Comrmittee has a formal timetable
of meetings Representatives of the Company's
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, attend
meetings by invitation Other employees of the
Company may be invited to attend meetings as
and when required
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The Board considers that all members of the
Committee have recent and relevant financial
experience to enable 1t to discharge its function
The Committee has a formal agenda, timetable
and terms of reference Durning the course of the
perod under review it has

reviewed the financial statements of the Company
and any formal announcements relating to the
Company’s financial performance prior to
announcement,

rmonitored the Company’s internal financial controls
and the Company's internal control and risk
management systems and ensured that these are
properly reviewed by the Group's management,

reviewed the scope of the work done by the Group
Internal auditor in reviewing the operating companies’
internal controls and procedures,

made recommendations to the Board n relation

to the appointment of the external auditor and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor,

-

monitored the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity, and

+ reviewed arrangements by which staff of the
Company may raise concerns about possible
improprieties 1n matters of financal reporting
or other matters

The Commuttee’s full terms of reference are available
on the Group’s website, www porvair com

The Audit Commuttee has set a policy which 1s
intended to maintain the independence and objectivity
of the Company's auditors when acting as auditor

of the Group accounts The policy governs the provision
of audit and non-audit senices provided by the auditor
and, in summary, requires significant non-audit
services other than routine tax complance services
to be subjected to a competitive tendering process

The Committee 1s authonsed to engage the services
of external advisers, as it deems necessary, at the
Company's expense in order to carry out its function

The Audit Committee met three times during the
year There was full attendance by its members

Remuneration Commuttee

The Remuneration Committee determines and
recommends to the Board the framework or broad
policy for the remuneration and long term incentive
arrangements of the Company's Executive Directors
The Committee’s full terms of reference are available
on the Group's website, www porvair com The Committee
compnises all of the independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company Andrew Walker is the
Chatrman of the Committee The Group Chief Executive
may be invited to attend and speak at meetings of
the Commttee, but does not paruicipate n any
matter which impacts upon his own remuneration
arrangements The remuneration of the Non-Executive

Directors, including the Charman, is set by the
Executive Directors

The Report of the Remuneration Committee on
pages 22 to 25 includes detals on remuneration
policy, practices and the remuneration of the
Directors

The Remuneration Cornrmittee met twice dunng the
year and was fully attended by all of sts members

The Committee’s full terms of reference are available
on the Group's website, www porvair com

Nomunation Committee

The Company has established a Nomination
Commuttee, which provides a transparent process
and procedure for the appointment of new Directors
to the Board The Commuttee compnses all of the
Non-Executive Directors The Committee 1s chaired by
the Chairman of the Company The Commuttee’s terms
of reference, include

- being responsible for identifying and nominating
candidates to fill Board vacancies,

+ evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience an the Board and the leadership needs
of the organisation, and

* succession plannmg

Any Director appointed since the last Annual General
Meeting (s required, under the Articles of Association,
to retire and seek election by the shareholders at the
next AGM

The Commuttee’s full terms of reference are available
on the Group’s website, www porvair com

The Nomination Committee did not meet during
the year However, the Group's leadership and
succession planning was considered 1n a meeting
of the full Board

Internal control

The Turnbull Report issued in 2005 gives guidance
for directors on reviewing internal controls and
reporting The Company has complied in full throughout
the year, and up to the date the financial statements
were approved, with the recommendations of the
Turnbull Report

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that
the Group mamntains a system of internal controt
The system is not designed to eliminate the nsk that
the Group's objectives will not be achieved but to
ensure that there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evatuating and managing the significant nsks As with
any such systern, it can only provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance aganst material misstatement
or loss The Board has reviewed the effectiveress of
the process regutarly throughout the year

The Group's key procedures are as follows
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Corporate governance continued

Control environment — each operating business has
Its own management group which meets regularly to
monitor operational matters The Managing Director
of each operating business reports to the Group Chief
Executive, and clearly defined lines of responsibility
have been established within this orgarusational
structure The Executive Directors visit all operations
regularly to perform detailed reviews

Risk management — operating business management
have a clear responsibility for the identification of
risks facing each operation, and for establishing
procedures to investigate and momitor such risks
The Board also commissions independent reviews
of the key risks facing the Group as appropriate

Infarmation and control systems — each operating
business maintans 1its own internal systems and
controls designed to provide management with regular
and reliable management information The Group
has a comprehensive process of annual budgets and
detailed monthly reporting The annual budget of
each operating business and the consolidated Group
budget are approved by the Board as part of its
normal responsibilities

Monitoring system — the Board has established a
framework of controls encompassing procedures
applicable to all businesses that are subject to
executive review The Group operates a self-assessment
process so that the operating businesses can quantify
the extent of their compliance with control objectives
This process 1s montitored by the Group’s internal
auditor and the Group Finance Director The Group
has a formal whistle blowing procedure which gives
employees the opportunity to escalate their concerns,
ultimately to the Semor Non-Executive Director

Consolidation process

Full management accounts for each entity sn the
Group are consolidated each month and review
and analysis is carrnied out on those results These
consolidated accounts form the basis of reparts
that are provided to Board members every month

The Audit Cormmittee and the Board have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls for
the year 1 Decernber 2008 to 30 Novemnber 2009

Chnstopher Tyler, Company Secretary
25 January 2010
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Porvair plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of Porvair

plc for the year ended 30 November 2009 which comprise
the Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated
statement of recognised income and expense, the
Consolidated balance sheet, the Conschidated cash flow
statement, the Reconciliation of net cash flow to
movement in net debt and the related notes The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is apphcable law and International Finanaial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the

European Union

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 19, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Group financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view Our respansibility 1s to audit the Group
financial statements in accordance with applicable tfaw
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditers

This report, including the opimions, has been prepared for
and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or 10 any other person to whorn this report
15 shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This inctudes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements

Opimion on financial statements
In our opimion the Group financial statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group'’s
affairs as at 30 November 2009 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements

of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
fn our opinion

- the information given in the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the Group financial statements
are prepared 15 consistent with the Group financial
statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion

- certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or

* a corporate governance statement has not been
prepared by the parent company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

- the Directors’ statement, set out on page 20, n relation
to going concern, and

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the company's comphance with the nine provisions of
the June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company
financial statements of Porvair plc for the year ended
30 November 2009 and on the information in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report that 15 described as
having been audited

Steven Tapping (Semor Stabutery Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Cambndge

25 January 2010
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Consolidated income statement

2009 2008
Before
Exceptional  Exceptional
1tems Items Total Total
For the year ended 30 November Note £ 000 £000 £ 000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 55,225 - 55,225 54,839
Cost of sales (37.783) - (37.783) (37.172)
Gross profit 17,442 - 17,442 17,667
Distribution costs (724) - {724) (705)
Administrative expenses (13,953) {662} (14,615) (12,146)
Operating profit/{loss) 2 2,765 (662) 2,103 4,816
Interest payable and similar charges 5 (1.115) - (1.115) (879)
Interest recewvable 5 68 - 68 221
Profit/(loss) before income tax 3 1,718 (662) 1,056 4,158
Income tax {expense)/credit 13 (317) 75 {242) (,261)
Overseas tax (expense)/credit 6 (260) 135 (125) (27)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to shareholders 23 1,141 (452) 689 2.870
Earmings/(loss) per share {basic} 7 27p (1 1)p 16p 70p
Earmings/{loss) per share {diluted) 7 27p {(11)p 16p 70p
Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
2009 2008
For the year ended 30 Movemnbes Mote £ 000 £000
Exchange differences on translation of foreign subsidianes 23 (872) 5119
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 20 (4,900)  (2,200)
Interest rate swap hedge 23 {245) -
Taxation credit on items taken directly to equity 19 1,362 493
Net (loss)/income recognised directly in equity (4.655) 3,412
Profit for the year 689 2870
Total recognised (loss)/income for the year (3.966) 6,282
Attnibutable to shareholders of Porvair plc (3.966) 6,282
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Consolidated balance sheet

2009 2008
As at 30 Novemnber Note £ 000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 8,872 9,870
Goodwill and other intangible assets W0 37,634 38,604
Deferred tax asset 19 2,664 751
Other receivable 1" 1,431 1.261

50,601 50,486

Current assets

Inventones 13 8,335 9,970
Trade and other receivables 14 8,865 11,078
Denvative financiat instruments 12 100 -
Cash and cash equivalents 15 3,384 2,501

20,684 23,549

Current habilities

Trade and other payables 1% {7.,945) (9.201)
Current tax liabilities (735) (372)
Bank overdrafts and loans 17 (582) {582)
Finance lease hiabihities 18 (142) {164)
Denvative financial instruments 12 (245) {283)

{9,649) (10,602)

Net current assets 11,035 12,947
Non-current liabilities

Bank loans 17 (16,530} {18,316)
Finance lease habibties 18 (40} (169}
Retirement benefit obligations 20 (8,606} (3,704}
Provisions for other habilities and charges 21 (65) 60)

(25.241) (22,249)

Net assets 36,395 41,184
Capital and reserves

Share capital 22 841 841
Share premium account 22 34,024 34,024
Cumulative transtation reserve 23 423 1,295
Retained earnings 23 1,107 5,024
Total shareholders’ equity 36,395 41,184

The financial statements on pages 30 to 62 were approved by the Board of Dwrectors an 25 lanuary 2010 and were signed
on its behalf by

8 DW Stocks

7 C 0 Rles
(N N
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Consolidated cash flow statement

2009 2008

For the year ended 30 Novernber Note £ 000 £ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 6,016 4,237
Interest received 61 9
Interest paid {997) {823)
Tax paid {564) {599)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,516 2,906
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidianes {net of cash acquired) 25 - (5121)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9 (928} (2,628)
Purchase of intangible assets 10 (267) (828)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 7
Net cash used in Investing activities (1,195} (8,570)
Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment of}/increase in borrowings {1,286} 6,008
Dwvidends paid to shareholders 8 (947) {909)
Capital element of finance leases {151} (88)
Net cash (used in}/generated from financing activities (2.384) 5011
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 937 (653)
Effects of exchange rate changes {54) 261

883 (392)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 December 2,501 2,893
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 November 15 3384 2,501
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2009 2008

£000 £ 000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 937 {653)
Effects of exchange rate changes 446 (2.405)
Repayment of/(increase in} borrowings 1,286 (6,789)
Repayment of finance leases 151 88
Net debt at 1 December (16,730) (6,971)
Net debt at 30 November (13.910) ({16,730)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies
Porvairis a public lmited company registered in the UK and listed on the London Stock Exchange

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as endorsed by the European Union, International Financtal Reporting Interpretations
Commuttee (IFRIC) interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to comparies reporting under
IFRS The Company has elected to prepare its entity accounts in accerdance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {"UK GAAP”) and these are presented on pages 64 to 70

The financial statements have been prepared under the histonical cost convention except for certain items that have
been measured at fair value as detailed in the individual accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements i conformity with generally accepted accounting practice requires the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the repoerting period Although these estimates
are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately differ from
those estimates

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financral statements incorporate the financial statemants of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company (its subsidianes) made up to 30 November each year Control 1s achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to cbtan benefits from its activities

On acquisition, the assets and hiabilities and contingent Liabilitres of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the
date of acquisition Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s
recognised as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired (e discount on acquisition) i1s credited to the tncome statement In the penod of acquisition

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consclidated iIncome statement
from the effective date of acqursition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statermnents of subsidianes to bring the accounting policies used into line with
those used by the Group

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenditures are eliminated on consolidation

Use of assumptions and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the applicatian of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal expenience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying
values of assets and Liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from

these estimates

The estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate 15 revised

Materal estimates and assumptions are made in particular wrth regard to establishing uniferm depreciation and
amortisation periods for the Group, goodwill and intangible assets valuation, impairment testing, parameters far
rmeasunng pension and other provisions, determinatien of the fair value of long term receivables and the likelihood that
tax assets can be realised

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations require the use of estimates (note 10)
Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair

value of the identifiable assets and habilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition The cost of acquisition includes
the fair value of deferred consideration

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment 1s recogmised
immediately in the iIncome statement and Is not subsequently reversed

Cn disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill 1s included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK GAAP
amounts subject to being tested for impairment at that date
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Summary of stgnificant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the mvoiced value of goods and services supplied net of value added tax and other sales taxes
Revenue 1s recognised when goods are despatched to the customer at which point the nisks and rewards of ownership
are transferred Revenue from service contracts 1s recogrised on a straight-line basis over the contract period

Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable, which 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the {ease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases Finance lease payments are allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding The rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in current and non-current liabilities The interest element of the finance
cost 15 charged to the income statemaent over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the habibity for each period

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-iine basis over the term of the relevant lease

Foreign currencies

The consclidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which 1s the Company’s functional and
presentational currency The Group determines the functional currency of each entity based on the pnmary economic
environment in which the entity operates and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and
babilities that are denorminated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailling on the balance sheet date
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss are
recogrised in profit or loss as part of the far value gan or loss Gains or losses ansing on retranslation are tncluded in
the income statement for the period, except for exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and lrabilities
where the changes n fair value are recognised directly in eguity

On consclidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's overseas operations, borrowings and other currency
instruments are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the peniod unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly Exchange
differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's translation reserve Such translation
differences are recognised as income or expenditure in the period in which the operation 1s disposed of

Goodwill and fair value adjustments anising on the acquisition of a forergn entity are treated as assets and habilities of
the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are typically recognised in profit or loss in the peniod in which they are incurred Borrowing costs
incurred 1n arrangement of new facilities are capitalised and subsequently recognised in the income statement over the
penod of the borrowings

Government grants
Government grants for the development of new products are recognised over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs and are deducted in reporting the related expense

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due Payments
made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contnbution schemes
where the Group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those ansing in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme

For defined benefit retirement schemes, the cost of providing benefits 1s determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuanal valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date Actuarial gams and losses are recognised
n full in the peniod in which they occur They are recognised outside the income statement in the consohdated
statement of recognised income and expense

Past service cost 1s recognised tmmediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise 1s
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

The retirement benefit obligation in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from
this calculation 1s limited to past service costs, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan

For certamn overseas defined benefit retirement schemes that are not material to the Group, the costs of providing
benefits are included within trade and other payables

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable i1s based on taxable profit for the period Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because 1t excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other penods
and it further excludes rtems that are never taxable or deductible The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabibities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used tn the computation of taxable profit, and 1s
accounted for using the balance sheet ability method Deferred tax lrabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogmised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised f
the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than a business combsnation) of
other assets and liabilitres in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount cf deferred tax assets i1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it s
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the Liability is settled or the
asset 1s realised Deferred tax s charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the balance sheet at their cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
imparrment losses

Properttes, plant and equipment in the course of construction for praduction or administrative purposes, or for purposes
not yet determined, are carned at cost, less any recogmsed impairment loss Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy Depreciation for these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recogmised impairment toss

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than land and properties under
construction, over thetr estimated useful ives, using the straight ine method, on the following bases

8uildings 25-3%
Fixtures and equipment 10 -30%
Motor vehicles 25%

Freehold land is not depreciated

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised in income

Internally generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense in the period in which it 1s incurred

An internally generated intangible asset anising from the Group's product development is recogmised only f all of the
following critera are demonstrable

+ The technical feasibiity of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,

The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
+ The ability to use the intangible asset or to sell it,
The way in which the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,

The avarlability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset,

* The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attnbutable to the intangible asset during its development

Internally generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over therr useful ives Useful Life ss
determined with reference to estimated product life in the industry in which the expenditure has been incurred
Useful bife of the Group's development expenditure 1s currently between 3 and 10 years Amortisation of development
expenditure commences when development has been completed to management satisfaction and the related project
15 ready for its intended use Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure 1s recognsed as an expense in the perad in which 1t 1s incurred

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are measured imtially at purchase cost and are amortised on a straight line basis over ther
estimated useful ives Patents and trademarks purchased as part of an acquisition, where there are expected future
economic benefits, are imtially measured at far value and amortised over their estrmated useful Lives

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Group reviews annually the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 15
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset 15 estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any)} Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unut to which the asset belongs An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for
impairment annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be impaired

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value i use In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash generating unit) 1s estimated to be tess than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash generating unit) 1s reduced to tts recoverable amount An
impairment loss 1s recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating umit) in prior years A reversal of an imparment loss 1s recognised as income immediately

Inventones

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct matenials and, where
apphicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventonies to their present
location and condition Cost 1s calculated using the weighted avesrage method Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred n marketing, selling and
distribution

Loans and receivables

Loans and recevables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date These are classified as non-current assets Loans are classifted as "other recewvables” in the
balance sheet

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised imtsally at fair value A provision for impairment of trade recevables is established
when there 15 objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal
terms of recewables Significant financral difficutties of the debtor and default or delinquency in payments when credit
control procedures have been applied are indicators an impairment may be required The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate The amount of the provision is recogmised in the income statement within administratve
expenses When a trade recevable 1s uncollectible it 1s wntten off to the provision for imparment Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against administrative expenses in the iIncome statement

Cash and cash equivalents
'Cash and cash equivalents’ includes cash in hand and deposits held with banks
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an
accruals basts to the income statement using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they anse

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their norminal value

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose it pnmarily to the financial nisks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates The Group
uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge these exposures The Group does not use denvative financial
instrurnents for speculative purposes

The use of financial denvatives ts governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provides
written principles on the use of financial derivatives

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recogmsed in
the income statement as they anse

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when
therr risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are not carred at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses reported in the income statement

The gain or loss on the effective portion of the interest rate swap agreements, that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges 15 recognised in equity under hedge accounting The ineffective portion is recogmised immediately in the
income statement within interest payable and similar charges

Provisions
Provisions for warranty costs are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the Directors’ best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the Group's bability

Provisions for restructuring costs are recogmised when the Group has a detailed format plan for the restructuring that
has been communicated to affected parties

Where the impact of discounting i1s matenial, the Group usually discounts at its weighted average cost of capital, unless
some other rate 1s more appropriate in the circumstances

Share based payments

The Group has appled the requirements of IFRS 2, 'Share based payment’ In accordance with the transitional provisions,
IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 January
2005

The Group 1ssues equity settled, share based payments to certain employees Equity settled, share based payments are
measured at fair vatue at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled, share based
payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting penod, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest The charge is then credited back to reserves

Fair value 1s measured by use of a Black-Scholes model The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferabitity, exercise restnctions, and behavioural considerations

The Group has adopted the requirements of IFRIC 11,'Group and treasury share transactions’, in these financial
statements This has no impact on the consolidated financial statements

Exceptional items

In accordance with 145 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’, the Group presents cartain items as “exceptional” These
are matenal items which denive from events or transactions that fall within the Group's ordinary activities and which
indwidually er, «f of a similar type, in aggregate, need to be separately disclosed by virtue of therr size, nature or
ncidence to enable a full understanding of the Group's financial performance

Segment reporting

A business segment s a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to
nsks and returns that are different from those of other business segments A geographical segment 1s engaged in
providing products or services within a particular econamic environment that are subject to nsks and returns which are
different from those of segments operating 1n other economic environments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Summary of signiftcant accounting policies continued

MNew standards, amendments and interpretations

{a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective for the first time in the year ended 30 November 2009
IFRIC 14, 'IAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset, mimimum funding requirements and their interaction’ This
provides guidance on accounting for defined benefit pension schemes This interpretation does not have any impact on
the Group's financial statements, as the Group has a pension deficit and 1s not subject to any mimimum funding
requirements

IFRIC 16, 'Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation’ This interpretation clanfies certain areas in respect of
net investment hedging This does not have a matenal impact on the Group or Company’s financial statements

{b} Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the year ended 30 November 2009 but not retevant
+ Amendment to IAS 39, 'Financial instruments Recognition and measurement’, and IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments
Disclosures’ on the ‘reclassification of financial assets’

+ IFRIC 12, 'Service concession arrangements’
+ IFRIC 13, "Customer loyalty programmes relating to IAS 18, Revenue’

{c) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early

IFRS 8, ’Operating segments’ This supersedes JAS 14, 'Segmental reporung’, under which segments were identified and
reported on a nsk and return analysis Under IFRS 8, segments are reported based on internal reporting, bringing
segment reporting 1n line with the requirements of US standard FAS 131 Published by the IASB in Novemnber 2006, this
Standard 15 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 The impact on the Group 1s currently
being assessed

Amendment to IFRS 2, 'Share based payment’ This clanfies what events constitute vesting condittons and also
specifies that all cancellations, whether by the Group or by another party, should receive the same accounting treatment
This may have an impact on the Group financial statements and 1s currently being assessed Published by the IASB on
17 January 2008, this amendment 1s effective for annual penocds beginning on or after 1 January 2009

IFRS 3 {Revised), 'Business combinations’ The revision to this standard changes accounting for business combinations
While the acquisition method 1s still applied, there are significant changes to the treatment of contingent payments,
transaction costs and the catculation of goodwill Published by the IASB in fanuary 2008, the standard 1s applicable to
business combinations occurring 1n accounting penaods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, with earlier apphication
permitted This could ympact the Group finanaial statements in future if 1t makes acquisitions

IAS 1 [Revised), 'Presentation of financial statements' This new standard will require 'non-owner changes in equity’
to be presented separately from ‘owner changes in equity’ Published by the JASB in September 2007, this standard 1s
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

IAS 23 (Revised), 'Borrowing costs’ A result of the joint short-term convergence project with the FASB, this new
standard requires an entity to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset The option of immediately expensing those borrowing
costs has been removed This will be relevant if the Group funds acquisitions with debt in the future Published by the
IASB in March 2007, this 1s effective for annual peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payments group cash-settled transactions These amendments provide a clear
basis to determine the classification of share based payment awards in both consolidated and separate financial
statements The amendments incorporates IFRIC 8 and IFRIC 11 into the standard, expands on the guidance given in
IFRIC 11 to address plans that were not considered in the interpretation and provides some useful tidying up to the
definitions section of IFRS 2 The amended definitions remave inconsistencies between Appendix A, defined terms, and
the main body of the standard The onginal wording was inconsistent regarding the treatment of equity instruments of
other entrties in the group Published on 18 June 2009, the standard 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010

Amendment to IFRS 7, ‘Finanaal instruments Disclosures’ This amendment forms part of the IASB's response to the
financiat crisis and addresses the G20 conclusions aimed at improvmg transparency and enhancing accounting guidance
The amendment increases the disclosure requirements about fair value measurement and reinforces existing principles
for disclosure about liquidity risk The amendment introduces a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurement
disclosure and requires some specific quantitative disclosures for financial instruments 1n the lowest level in the
hierarchy In addition, the amendment clanfies and enhances existing requirements for the disclosure of liquidity nsk
primanly requinng a separate iquidity nsk analysis for denivative and non-derivative financial habiities Published in
March 2009, this 1s effective for accounting penods starting on or after 1 January 2009 with no comparatives for the
first year of application
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments on classification and measurement’ This is the first part of a new standard on
classification and measurement of finanaial assets that will replace 1A% 39 IFRS 9 has two measurement categories
amortised cost and fair value All equity instruments are measured at fair value A debt instrument 1s at amortised cost
only if the entity is holding 1t to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest
Otherwise 1t 15 at fair value through profit or ioss Published in November 2009, and effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 january 2013, this is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group

(d) standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and not currently relevant to the Group
* Amendment to IFRS 1,'First time adoption of IFRS’ and IAS 27 ‘Consalidated and separate financial statements’

+ IAS 27 (Revised), 'Consolidated and separate financial statements’

« Amendment to IAS 32, 'Financial instruments Presentation’, and IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’
+ Amendment to IAS 39, 'Financial Instruments Recognition and measurement on eligible hedged items'

+ Amendment to IFRS 1 on first time adoption of IFRS additional exemptions

* Amendments to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39 regarding embedded derivatives

« Amendment to |AS 32 on classification of rights i1ssues

+ Amendment to IAS 24, 'Related party disclosures’

IFRIC 15, 'Agreements for construction of real estates’

IFRIC 17, ‘Distributions of non-cash assets to owners’

IFRIC 18, 'Transfer of assets from customers’

+ IFRIC 19, ‘Extinguishing financial abilities with equity instruments’

2 Segment information

Primary reporting format — business segments
At 30 November 2009, the Group 1s organised on a worldwide basis into two main business segments

(1) Metals Filtration
(2} Microfiltration

Exceptional itemns of £0 7 million (2008 £nil) relate to restructuring and redundancy costs incurred in reorganising the
Group's operations £0 4 million was incurred in Metals Filtration and £0 3 million was incurred in Microfiltration

The Microfiltration segment operating profit includes Seal Analytical Limited Group and Toolturn Engineening Limited

Other Group operations are included in 'Other unallocated’ and manly compnse Group Corporate costs not directly
allocatable, some unallocatable research and development, new business development and general financial services

The segment results for the year ended 30 November 2009 are as follows

Metals Other

Filtration  Mucrefiltration unallocated Group
30 November 2009 Note £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Revenue 18,696 36,529 - 55,225
Operating (loss)/profit before exceptional items {1,210) 5.276 (1.301) 2,765
Exceptional items (356) {296) - {662)
Operating (loss)/profit {1.576) 4,980 (1.301) 2,103
Finance costs 5 - - (1.047)  (1,047)
{Loss)/profit before income tax {(1,576) 4,980 (2.348) 1,056

Income tax expense - (367) (367)

{Loss)/profit for the year (1.576) 4,980 (2.715) 689

dnoin
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

The segment results for the year ended 30 November 2008 are as follows

Metals OCther
Filtration  Microfiltrauon unallocated Group
30 November 2008 Note £000 £000 £000 £ 000
Revenue 22,498 32,341 - 54,839
Operating profit/(loss) 1,061 5.068 (1.313) 4,816
Finance costs 5 - - (658) (658)
Profit/(loss) before iIncome tax 1,061 5.068 (1,971) 4,158
Income tax expense - - (1.288) (1,288)
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,061 5,068 (3,259) 2.870
Other segment items included in the Income statement are as follows
Metals Other
Filratien  Microfiltration  unallocated Group
30 November 2009 Note £000 £000 £000 £ 000
Depreciation and amortisation (tangible and intangible assets) 910 972 1,005 14 1,991
Metals GOther
Filtration  Microfiltration unallocated Croup
30 November 2008 Note £000 £000 £000 £'000
Depreciation and amortisation {tangible and intangible assets) 810 726 890 7 1,623

The segment assets and Liabilittes at 30 November 2009 and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows

Metals Other

Fitration  Microfiltration unallocated Croup
30 November 2009 Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Segmental assets 25,153 38,646 2,671 66,470
Long term recervable 1t - - 1,431 1,431
Cash andg cash equivalents 15 - - 3,384 3,384
Total assets 25,153 38,646 7.486 71,285
Segmental Liabilities (2.194) (5.101) (1.695)  (8,990)
Retirement obligations 20 - - (8.606) (8.606)
Borrowings 1718 - (182) (17.112) (17,294)
Total babilities (2.194) (5.283) (27,413) (34,890)
Capital expenditure {tangible and intangible assets) 910 770 404 21 1,195
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2 Segment information contimued

The segment assets and habilities at 30 November 2008 and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows
Metals Other

Fittratien  Microfiltration unallecated Group
30 November 2008 Note £000 £000 £ 000 £000
Segmental assets 29,737 39,781 755 70,273
Long term receivable 1 - - 1,261 1,261
Cash and cash equivalents 15 - - 2,501 2.501
Total assets 29,737 39,781 4,517 74035
Segmental habilities (3,248) (5479) (1,189)  {9,916)
Retirement obligations 20 - - (3,704)  (3.704)
Borrowings 1718 - (333) (18.898) (19,231)
Total labilities (3.248) (5812) (23,791} (32.851)
Capital expenditure (tangible and intangible assets) 310 1,931 1,489 36 3,456

Segment assets consist pnimarnly of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventones, receivables and
operating cash

Segment liabilities compnise operating hiabihties and include items such as taxation and corporate borrowings

Caprital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

2009 2008
By By

destination By angin destinanion By engin
Revenue £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
United Kingdom 13,301 26,297 14,834 28,302
Continental Europe 8,047 6,860 9,071 1,799
Americas . 25,456 21,762 26,166 24,738
Asia 7,026 306 3,765 -
Australasia 525 - 490 -
Afnica 870 - 513 -

55,225 55,225 54,839 54,839

2009 2008

Total assets £ 000 £000
United Kingdom 42,840 40,275
Continental Europe 6,085 2,016
Americas 21,885 31,704
Asia 475 40
71,285 74,035

2009 2008

Capital expenditure £000 £ 000
Umited Kingdom 381 1,479
Continental Europe 17 12
Americas 602 1,947
Asia 195 18

1,195 3,456

dnoun



dnoun

42 | Porvair plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Profit before income tax

Revenue compnises income from the sale of goods and services during the year The following items have been included in
arnving at operating profit

2009 2008
£ 000 £000

Staff costs 18,560 17,779
Inventories — Cost of imventories recognised as an expense (included in cost of sales) 19,472 19,946
Net reabised foreign exchange (gans)/losses (206) 204
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets — owned 1,560 1,290
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets — leased 28 54
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets — owned 325 246
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets — leased 78 33
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 5 1
Other operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machinery 266 258
— Property 1,459 1,173
Repairs and maintenance on property, plant and equipment 827 1,139
Trade recevables impairment 163 83
Research and development expenditure 2,514 2,236
Services provided by the Group's auditors and network firms
During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtamed the following services

from the Group's auditors at costs as detailed below

Fees payable to Company’s auditors for audit of parent company and consolidated accounts 50 50
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for other services - 1
The audit of Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 74 79
Other services pursuant to legislation 16 16
Tax services 104 71

244 217

In addition to the above services, the Group's auditors acted as auditors to the Porvair plc Pension and Death Benefit
Plan The appointment of auditors to the Group's pension plan and the fees paid in respect of those audits are agreed by
the Trustees who act independently from the management of the Group The aggregate fees paid to the Group's
auditors for the audit services to the pension plan during the year was £13,000 (2008 £13,000)

4 Employee benefit expense

The average number of staff, including Executive Directors, employed duning the year 1s detailed below

2009 2008
Average Average
Number
Metals Filtration 145 179
Microfiltration 359 376
Head office 7 7
511 562
North Amencan employees included above 155 198
2009 2008
£000 £000
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 15,328 14,643
Social security costs 2,527 2,129
Other pension costs 581 902
Share based payments 124 105

18,560 17779

Detaited disclosures of Directors’ emoluments and interests in share options are shown in the Report of the
Remuneration Committee on pages 22 to 25

The Executive Directors compnise the key management and their remuneration 1s in the Report of the Remuneration
Committee
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5 Finance income and costs

2009 2008
Note £000 £ 000
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 759 846
Interest payable on finance leases 43 16
Interest payable on loan notes 8 12
Unwinding of discount on provisions 21 5 5
Pension scheme finance expense/{income) 300 (100)
Interest recevable — long term receivable (44) (117)
Interest recewvable — other (24) (10)
1.047 658
6 Income tax expense
2009 z008
Note £ 000 £ 000
Current tax
UK Corporation tax 398 744
Adjustment 1n respect of prior penods 33 10
Overseas tax 514 27
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences — UK 19 (189} 535
— Overseas 19 (389) -
Adjustment i respect of prior periods 19 - (28)
367 1,288

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the UK tax rate
applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows

2009 2008

£ 000 £000
Profit before tax 1,056 4,158
Tax at the UK Corporation tax rate of 28% (2008 28 67%) 296 1,192
Tax adjustments in respect of previous periods 33 10
Deferred tax adjustments in respect of previous penods - (28)
Deferred tax on share based payments within equity (35) (30)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 26 138
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other junsdictions 47 6
Tax charge 367 1,288

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following tax was (credited)/charged direct to equity

2009 2008

£ 000 £ 000

Deferred tax on share based payments 10 55
Deferred tax on actuanal {losses) on the pension fund (1.372) {548)

(1.362) (493)

During the year the change in UK Corporation Tax rates, which were effective from 1 Apnl 2008, reduced the UK
Corporation tax rate to 28 00% (2008 28 67%)

dnoun
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

7 Earnungs per share

2000 2008
Weighted weighted
average  Per share average Per share
Earmings number amount Earmings number amount
£ 000 of shares {pence) £ 000 of shares (pence)
Basic EPS
Earnings before exceptional items 1,141 27 2,870 70
Exceptional items (452) (11) - -
Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 689 42,073,640 16 2870 41,041,288 70
Effect of dilutive securities
Earnings before exceptional items 1,141 27 70
Exceptional items (452) (11
Share options - - - - 17.817 -
Diluted EPS 689 42,073,640 16 2,870 41,059,105 70
8 Dividends per share
2009 2008
Per share £ DDO Per share £ 000
Final dwvidend paid 125p 526 120p 488
Interim dividend pad 100p 421 100p 421
225p 947 220p 209
The Directors recommend a final dividend of 1 25p for the financial year ended 30 November 2009 to be paid on
11 June 2010
9 Property, ptant and equipment
Freehold Assets n Plant
land and course of machmnery and
burldings  constructhon equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 December 2007 3,148 699 16,740 20,587
Reclassification 474 {1.190) 716 -
Additions 293 683 1,652 2,628
Acquisitions - ~ 553 553
Disposals (371} - (906) (1,277)
Exchange differences 622 30 2,943 3,595
At 30 November 2008 4,166 222 21,698 26,086
Depreciation
At 1 December 2007 (837) -~ (13,028) (13.865)
Charge for year (178) - (1,166)  (1,344)
Reclassification (49) ~ 49 -
Disposals 371 - 898 1.269
Exchange differences {233) - (2.043) (2.276)
At 30 November 2008 (926) - (15290) (16,216)

Net book value at 30 November 2008 3,240 222 6,408 9,870
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9 Property, plant and equipment continued

Freehold Assets in Plant

land and course of machinery and

buildings  construction equipment Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 December 2008 4,166 222 21,698 26,086
Reclassification - (456) 456 -
Additions 1 369 558 928
Disposals - - {360) (360)
Exchange differences (160) (2 (803) (972)
At 30 November 2009 4,007 126 21,549 25,682
Depreciation
At 1 December 2008 (926) —  {15.290) (16,216)
Charge for year {212) - (1.376)  (1.588)
Disposals - - 356 356
Exchange differences 67 - 571 638
At 30 November 2009 (1,071) - {15,739) (16,810)
Net book value at 30 November 2009 2,936 126 5,810 8,872

The net book value of plant, machinery and equipment includes £86,000 (2008 £193,000) held under finance leases

(note 18)
10 Goodwill and other intangible assets
Development
expenditure Software
Goodwill capitalised capitalised Trademarks Total
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £000

At 1 December 2007
Cost 44933 561 398 - 45,892
Accurnulated amortisation and impairment {18,.421) (68) (265) -  (18,754)
Net book amount 26,512 493 133 - 27138
Year ended 30 November 2008
Opening net book amount 26,512 493 133 - 27,138
Additions - 763 65 - 828
Acquisitions 5673 - 487 32 6,192
Amortisation charges - (168) (108) (3} (279)
Exchange differences 4,416 302 7 - 4,725
Closing net book amount 36,601 1,390 584 29 38,604
At 30 November 2008
Cost 55,171 1,662 957 32 57822
Accumulated amortisation and imparment (18,570} (272) (373) (3) (19,218)
Net book amount 36,601 1,390 584 29 38,604
Year ended 30 November 2009
Opening net bock amount 36,601 1,390 584 29 38,604
Additions - 229 38 - 267
Disposals - - (1) - (1)
Amortisation charges - (196) (200) (7) (403)
Exchange differences (758) (92) 13 4 (833)
Closing net book armount 35,843 1,331 434 26 37,634
At 30 November 2009
Cost 54,454 1,820 1,006 36 57.326
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (18,621) (489) (572) (10) (19,692)
Net book amount 35,843 1,331 434 26 37,634

dnosn
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

10 Gooedwill and other intangible assets continued

Internally generated intangible assets ansing from the Group's product development are recogrised only if all conditions
are met as descnibed in the Summary of significant accounting policies

Amortisation of £403,000 (2008 £279,000) 15 included in ‘cost of sales” in the income statement
The net book value of software capitalised includes £186,000 (2008 £264,000) held under finance leases (note 18)

Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units (CGUs) identified according to business segment

A segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below

200% 2008
Metals Metals
Filtratton  Microfiltration Total Filtraon  Microbiltration Total
£'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 E 000 £ 000
14,295 21,548 35,843 15177 21,424 36,601

The recoverable amount of the goodwill 1s based on value-in-use calculations The calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covenng a three-year penod Cash flows beyond the three-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calcutations Metals Filtration Microfiltration

us us UK Germany

Budgeted gross margin 33% 33% 33% 33%
Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate

cash flows beyond the budget penod 3% 3% 3% 3%

Cost of capital 9% 9% 9% 9%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each operation within the business segment Management
determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its expectations for the market development
The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with past experience and market expectaticns The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments

If the revised estimated profit before tax at 30 November 2009 was 10% lower than management’s estimates and the
pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flows was 10% higher than management’s estimate, the Group would still not
require any iImpairment against goodwil!

11 Other receivable

2009 2008
£000 £000
Long term receivable 1,431 1,261
2009 2008
£ 000 £ 000

At 1 December

1,261 1,056

Exchange difference 141 180
Farr value restatement 29 25
At 30 November 1,431 1,261

The fair value of this long term recevable is based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on a weighted average

cost of capital rate of 9% (2008 9%)

The earliest contracted settlernent date for the long term recevable 1s 31 December 2010
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12 Denvative financial instruments

2009 2008
Assets babilities Assets Liabilities

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges — current 100 - - {283)
Interest rate swap agreements — cash flow hedges - current - (245) - -
100 {245) - f283)

Under IFRS the fair value of all forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options 1s recognised on the balance
sheet with the corresponding entry included within administrative expenses As a result, from 1 December 2005, the
Group recogmises all forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options on the balance sheet at fair value using
external market data

Trading dervatives are classified as a current asset or hability The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a
non-current asset or lrability if the remaining matunty of the hedged item 1s more than 12 months and, as a current
asset or liabiity, if the matunty of the hedged item is less than 12 months

The notional principal amount of the outstanding US dollar forward foreign exchange contracts at 30 November 2009 15
£15 million (2008 £1 2 milion) which mature in January 2010, February 2010 and March 2010 The notional principal
amount of the outstanding Euro forward exchange contract at 30 November 2009 1s £0 3 milion (2008 £0 4 mullion)
which matures in February 2010

The Group has entered into interest rate swap agreements for US$10 million of its US borrowings and £3 million of its
UK borrowings duning the year The Group has accounted for these swap agreements using hedge accounting with gains
or losses being charged directly to equity

13 Inventones

2009 2008

£000 £ 000
Raw matenals 2,675 3,270
Work in progress 2,751 2936
Fimished goods 2,909 3,764

8335 9,970

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in“cost of sates’ amounted to £19,472,000

{2008 £19,946,000) The Group has recognised a provision of £656,000 (2008 £225,000) for the write-down of its
inventones dunng the year ended 30 November 2009 The Group has utibsed grovisions of £228,000 (2008 £107,000)
durning the year ended 30 November 2009

dnaig
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14 Trade and other receivables

2009 2008

£ 000 £000
Trade receivables 8,245 10,024
Less provision for impairment (235) (244)
Trade receivables — net 8,010 9,780
Other debtors 649 424
Prepayments 206 874

8,865 11,078

There is no difference between the fair value of trade and other recewvables and their carrying value

Credit risk in relation to trade receivables

The Group has a diverse customer base both geographically and in the number of industrnies in which 1t operates There
15 credit nisk associated with a decline in a paruicular industry or geographic region To offset this nsk the Group has
implemented policies that require appropnate credit checks to be performed on significant potential customers before
sales are made Customer orders are checked against pre-set critena before acceptance and credit control procedures
are applied Letters of credit and payments in advance are obtained from customers as appropriate

The Group does not hold secunity over its recesvables so was exposed to credit risk in respect of the net trade recevables
balance of £8,010,000 {2008 £9,780,000} Management believe the credit quality of trade recevables which are within
the Group's typical payment terms of between 30 and 90 days are good, with £1,392,000 (2008 £2,035,000) being past
due but not impaired at the year end, of which £837,000 (2008 £1,311,000) are less than 30 days overdue

2009 2008
Past due not Past due not
Not yet due impatred Impawed Mot yet due impaired impaired
Trade recevables £ E 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Not yet due 6,603 - - 7,666 - -
C-3 months overdue - 1,392 23 - 2,035 25
3-6 months overdue - 15 71 - 79 17
»>6 months overdue - - 141 - - 202
Total 6,603 1,407 235 7,666 2114 244

The Group has recognised a provision of £163,000 {2008 £83,000) for the impairment of its trade recewables durning
the year ended 30 Novernber 2009 The Group has used provisions for impaired recevables of £172,000 (2008 £44,000)
during the year ended 30 November 2009 The Group recognised a £146,000 provision for impairment of (ts trade
receivables on acquisition of the Seal Analytical group in 2008 The creation and usage of provisions for impairment of
receivables has been included in ‘administrative costs’ in the income statement

Foreign exchange risk in relation to trade recewvables i1s disclosed in note 26

15 Cash and cash equivalents

2009 2008

£ 000 £000
Cash at bank and 1n hand 3,384 2,501
The Group's cash balances are denominated in the fotlowing currencies

2009 2008

£000 £000
Pounds Sterling 280 106
US dollar 2,195 1332
Euro 831 987
Other 78 76

3,384 2501
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16 Trade and other payables

2009 2008
£000 £ 000

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 4,846 5677
Taxation and sovial secunty 633 859
Accruals and deferred income 2,466 2,665

7,945 9,201

17 Borrowings

2009 2008
£ 000 £000

Secured multi-currency revolving credit facility of US$25 million
(2008 Us525 million) maturing in July 2011 with interest at 2 95%
(2008 1 825%) above US dollar LIBOR 13,588 14919

Secured five year amortising debt faality of £1 875 mullion
(2008 £2 375 million) expinng in July 2013 with interest at 3 25%
{2008 1 825%) above LIBOR 1,863 2,359

Secured revolving credit facility of Euro €1 6 million
{2008 €1 6 million) maturing January 2011 with interest at 2 95%

{2008 1 825%) above EURIBOR 1,461 1,320
Unsecured loan notes relating to the acquisition of Toolturn
Engineering Limited {note 25) 200 300

17,112 18,898

2009 2008
Bank and other loans of the Group are repayable as follows £000 £ 000
Within one year 582 582
One to two years 15,660 582
Two to five years 870 17,734

17,112 18,898

The loans are shown net of 1ssue costs of £67,000 (2008 £82,000) which are being amortised over the life of the loan
agreement On 3 June 2009, the Group renegotiated its banking arrangements and covenants resuiting in an increase in
margin of 1125% on revobang credit facilities and 1 425% on the term loan facility

At 30 Novernber 2009 the Group had £1,646,000 (2008 £1,310,000) of unutilised borrowing facilities under the
existing bank facility and a £1,500,000 (2008 £1,500,000) overdraft faclity

The carrying values of bank borrowings approximate ther farr value

The multi-currency, Euro revolving credit facilities and amortising debt facility are secured by fixed and floating charges
against the Group's assets

The unsecured loan notes are payable In equal instalments over 3 years to March 2011 Interest I1s payable at National
Westminster Bank plc base rate (note 25)

The Group’s berrowings are denominated in the following currencies

2009 2008

£000 £ 000
Pounds Sterling 6,508 7,593
US dollar 9,140 9,775
Euro 1,464 1,530

17,112 18,898
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

18 Finance lease Liabilities

2009 2008
£ 000 £ 000
Gross lease habilities
Within one year 156 195
Later than one year and less than five years 46 202
202 397
Future interest {20) (64)
Net lease Liabilities 182 333
Net lease liabilities are repayable as follows
Within one year 142 164
Between two and five years 40 169
Total over one year 40 169
The leases are secured on the assets to which they relate
19 Deferred tax asset
The Group movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows
2009 2008
MNote £ 000 £ 000
At 1 December 751 753
Exchange differences {27) 66
Income statement credit/{charge) 6 578 (507)
Tax credited to equity 1,362 493
Acquisitrons - {54)
At 30 November 2,664 751
The movement of deferred tax assets and (babilities) dunng the year 15 as follows
Accelerated  Other short
capital  term tirming Farr vatue R&D  Share based Retirement
allowances differences gams capitalised payments obligations Total
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £0 £000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 December 2007 (564) 942 26 (166) 25 490 753
{Charged)/credited to income statement (223) (89) (7) (206) 30 (12) {507}
{Charged)/credited to equity - - - - (55) 548 493
Acquisitions (54) - - - - - (54)
Exchange differences (178} 285 - (43) - - 66
At 30 November 2008 (rvo17) 1138 19 (415) - 1,026 751
Credited/(charged) to income statement 82 S86 (8) (121) 35 4 578
(Charged)/credited to equity - - - - (10} 1,372 1.362
Exchange differences 43 (99) - 29 - - (27)
At 30 November 2009 (892) 1,625 11 (507) 25 2,402 2,664

There were £829,000 (2008 £530,000) of unrecognised deferred tax assets at 30 November 2009 relating to unutilised
tax losses, pnmanly in the US The tax losses in relation to losses incurred in the US have been recognised to the extent

that they are expected to be relieved against future profits

There were no other unprovided deferred tax amounts at 30 November 2009 (2008 £MNil)
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20 Retirement benefit obligations

2009 2008

£ 000 £ 000
Defined benefit scheme deficit 8,453 3,540
Additional penston commitments 153 164

8,606 3,704

The additional pension commitments arise out of contractual commitments to certain employees which have fallen
outside the scope of the defined benefit plan deficit These liabilities will crystalise between two and thirteen years

a) Defined contribution schemes

For its US employees, the Group operates a defined contribution pension plan (the ‘Pension Plan’) covenng all eligible
full ime ernployees The Group contributes 3% of each participant’s base salary each year to the Pension Plan In 2009
this amounted to £144,000 (2008 £154,000) In 2009 the Group also made payments of £15,000 (2008 £157,000) to
designated US 401k schemes on behalf of 1ts employees

In the UK, after the closure of the defined benefit plan to new members, the Group introduced a stakeholder plan to be
offered to all new employees Total employer contributions in the UK to defined contribution schemes were £241,000
(2008 £263,000)

b) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme covering a number of employees in the UK The pension scheme 1s
financed through a separate trust fund administered by Trustees with an independent Chairman The Porvair plc Pension
8 Death Benefit Plan (the 'Plan’) was closed to new entrants in October 2001

Formal valuations of the Plan by a professionally qualified actuary are carned out at least every three years using the
prejected umit method Under this method the current service cost will increase n relation to the salaries of the
members in future years as those members approach retirement The latest full actuanal vatuation was at 1 Apnl 2006
An actuarial valuation at 1 Apnil 2009 1s currently being prepared
2006 2003
valuation valuatien

assumptions  assumptions
The principal actuanial assumptions adopted wn the 2006 valuation were

Past service investment return

Pre-retirement 675 800
Post-retirement 475 800
Future service investment return

Pre-retirement 700 800
Post-retirement 500 800
Salary increases 400 500

The actuartat value of the assets on the funding basis was sufficient to cover 92% (previous valuation in 2003 83%} of
the benefits that had accrued to members after allowing for expected increases in pensionable remuneration, and the
current funding deficiency amounted to £1 8 million

The UK pension charge for the year was £200,000 (2008 £300,000), the funding via employer contributions was
£487,000 {2008 £492,000)

The valuation of the deficit in the balance sheet 1s based on the most recent actuarial vatuation of the Plan as updated
by the Plan actuaries to take account of the market value of the assets and the present value of the hiabilities of the Plan
at 30 November 2009

Balance sheet
The financial assumptions used to calculate Plan babilities under 1AS 19

2009 2008 2007

Projected Projected Projected

Valuation method Unit Unit Unit
Discount Rate 55% 68% 59%%
Inflation Rate 33% 32% 32%
General salary increases 33% 42% 42%
Rate of increase of pensians in payment 33% 32% 32%

Rate of increase for deferred pensioners 33% 32% 32%

dnoin
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20 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Pre and post retirement mortality

The SAPS base mortality tables have been used, with a 110% multipher allowing for future improvements of 1 5% per
annum for 10 years then 1% per annum thereafter The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retining at age 65
on the balance sheet date 15 19 7 {2008 18 2) for men and 22 6 {2008 21 3) for women

The assets in the Plan with their expected rates of return are

Long term Long term Long term Long term Lang term
expected expected expected expected expected
rate of rate of rate of rate of rate of
return at 30 Value at 30 returnat 30 Value at 30 return 3t 30 Value at 30 return at 30 Value at 30 return at 30 Value at 30
November Movember MNovember Movember MNovember MNovember MNovember November  Novermber  Novernber
2009 2009 2008 2008 2007 2007 2006 2006 2005 2005
£000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000
Equities 81% 9,800 84% 8,100 80% 12200 78% 12,100 80% 11300
Bonds S5% 7,500 4 4% 6,360 46% 6,800 4 4% 6,600 42% 6,200
Other 4 0% 47 4 4% - 46% 68 43% 268 41% 131
Fair value of plan assets 17,347 14,460 19,068 18,968 17,631
Present value of
funded obligations (25,800} (18,000) (20,700) (23,000) {24,400)
Deficit in the Ptan
(excluding deferred tax} (8,453) (3,540) (1.632) (4.032) (6,769)
The analysis of movement in the deficit in the Plan for the year is as follows
2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000
Deficit at 1 December (3,540}  (1632) (4032)
Contributions paid 487 492 281
Current service cost (200) {300) (300)
Past serwice cost - - (81)
Gther finance (expense)/income (300) 100 100
Actuanal {losses)/gains (4900) (2.200) 2,400
Deficit at 30 Novenber (8.453) (3,540} ({1,632)
The reconciliation of plan assets during the year 15 as follows
2009 2008
£000 £000
Market value at start of year 14,460 19,068
Benefit payments (1,300)  {1,100)
Company contributions 487 492
Member contributions 100 100
Expected return on assets 900 1.300
Gamn/(loss) on assets 2,700 (5,400)
Plan assets at the end of the year 17,347 14,460
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20 Retirement benefit obltgations continued

2009 2008
Income statement £ 000 £ 000
Analysis of amounts chargeable to operating profit
Current service cost (200) (300)
Amount chargeable to operating profit {(200) (300)
Analysis of amounts (charged)/credited to other finance iIncome
Interest on Plan babilities (1,200)  (1,200)
Expected return on assets in the Plan 900 1,300
Net amount {charged)/credited to other finance mcome (300) 100
Total chargeable to the income statement before deduction of tax (500) (200)
Other items
Analysis of amounts recogmsed in the Statement of
recognised income and expense
Gains/{losses) on assets 2,700 {5,400)
(Losses)/gains on change in financial and demographic assumptions {7,600} 3,200
Total actuarial {loss) recogrised in the Statement of
recognised income and expenditure {4,900) (2,200)
Cumulative actuanal (loss}/profit recognised in the Statement of
recogmsed income and expenditure {2,100) 2,800
21 Provisions for other habilities and charges
2009 2008
£000 £000
At 1 December 60 133
— Used duning year - (78)
Charged to consolidated income statement
— Unwinding of discount 5 5
At 30 November 65 60

The provisians arise from a discounted dilapidations provision for leased property which 1s expected to reverse in 2027

2009 2008
Analysis of total provisions £'000 £ 000
Non-current 65 60
65 60
22 Share capital and premium

Share

Crdinary premium
Number of shares account Fotal
shares £000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 December 2007 40,698,506 814 32,765 33,579
Issue of shares as part-consideration for the Seal Analytical acquisition 1,375,134 27 1,259 1,286
At 30 November 2008 and 30 November 2009 42,073,640 841 34,024 34,865

The authonised number of ordinary shares 1s 75 million shares (2008 75 million shares) with a par value of 2p per share

(2008 2p per share) All 1ssued shares are fully pard

dnoun
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22 Share capital and premium continued

Share options

Share options are granted to Directors and to selected employees The exeraise price of the granted options I1s equal to
the mid-market price of the shares on the date of grant

These equity settled, share based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value determmed at
the grant date of the equity settled, share based payments 1s expensed to the income statement on a straight Line basis
over the vesting penod, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest The charge 1s then credited
back to reserves

Fair value 1s measured by use of a Black-Scholes modet The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferabibity, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations

Details of the share options are

2009 2008

Year of Exercise  Subscription Number of Number of

grant penod  prce (pence) shares shares

1997 (Revenue unapproved) 2002 2005 - 2009 126 50 - B5000
1997 (Revenue approved} 2003 2006 - 2013 11100 5,000 5,000
1997 (Revenue unapproved) 2003 2006 - 2010 11100 85,000 85,000
1997 (Revenue unapproved) 2003 2006 - 2010 160 00 10,000 10,000
1997 (Revenue approved) 2004 2007 — 2014 11400 30,000 30,000
1997 (Revenue unapproved) 2004 2007 — 2011 11400 20,000 20,000
1997 (Revenue unapproved) 2004 2007 — 2011 10150 60,000 60000
1997 (Revenue unapproved) 2004 2007 - 2011 103 50 30,000 30,000
1997 (Revenue unapproved) 2005 2008 - 2012 9800 274000 274,000
2005 EMI (Revenue approved} 2006 2009 - 2013 15100 20,000 40,000
2005 EMI (Revenue approved} 2006 2009 - 2013 13100 172,660 182,660
2005 (Revenue unapproved) 2006 2009 - 2013 13100 147,340 147340
2005 EMI (Revenue approved} 2007 2010- 2014 13800 60,000 60,000
2005 (Revenue unapproved) 2007 2010- 2014 13800 150,000 150,000
2007 Save As You Earn Scheme 2007 2010 - 2011 108 00 56,875 94,500
2005 EMI (Revenue approved} 2008 2011 - 2015 11000 15,000 15,000
2005 (Revenue unapproved) 2008 2011 - 2015 11400 150,000 150,000
2008 Long term incentive scheme 2008 2011 - 2018 200 767,373 767373
2008 Save as You Earn Scheme 2008 2011 - 2012 8000 369,420 470,470
2005 (Revenue unapproved) 2009 2012 -~ 2016 6950 350,000 -
At 30 November 2,772,668 2676343

Movements in share options duning the year were
2009 2008
‘Weighted Weighted

average average 2009 2008

exercise exercise Number of Number of

pnce (pence}  pnice {pence) shares shares

At 1 December 7864 13481 2,676,343 1,824,975
Options granted 69 50 12081 350,000 1,402,843
Options expired 126 50 25900 (85,000) (130,000)
Options forferted 97 79 11512 {168,675) (421,475)
At 30 November 74 86 7864 2,772,668 2,676,343
Options exercisable at 30 November 11508 10699 854,000 599,000
Options not exercisable at 30 November 5617 6973 1,918,668 2,077,343

Total 74 86 7864 2,772,668 2,676,343
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22 Share capital and premium continued

Subscription 2009 2008
price Number of Number of
Options expired during the year were Scheme pence shares shares
1997 25900 - 130,000
1997 12650 85,000 -
At 30 November 85,000 130,000
Options forfeited during the year were
2005 15100 20,000 -
2005 13100 10,000 -
2005 13800 - 72,463
2005 13800 - 27537
SAYE 108 00 37,625 321,475
SAYE 8000 101,050 —
At 30 November 168,675 421,475
Share based payment
30 November 2009
Grant date 28/1/03 25/6/03 29/6/04 16/9/04 25/11/04 25/1/05 27/1/06 07/3/06
Porvair Porvair Porvair Porvair Porvair Porvair Porvair Porvanr
1997 share 1997 share 1997 share 1997 share 1997 share 1997 share 2005 2005
Scheme option option apuon option option option  share opuion  share option
Share price at grant date 11100p 16000p 11400p 10100p 103 50p 980Cp 13100p 15100p
Exercise price 11100p 16000p  17400p 10100p 103 50p 9800p 13100p 15%100p
Shares under opticn 116,000 90,000 65,000 60,000 30,000 274,000 330,000 40,000
Vesting period (years) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Expected volatility 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30%
Expected hfe {years) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Risk free rate 4 00% 375% 4 50% 475% 475% 475% 450% 4 50%
Dividend yield 306% 213% 175% 197% 193% 209% 160% 139%
Fair value per option (£) 021907 033726 025840 022892 023427 021883 030066 035263
Grant date 28/2/07 17/8/07 o1/2/08 10/3/08 10/4/08 01/10/08 30/1/09
Porvair Share Porvawr Parvair Share Porvaw
2005 save 2005 2005 Porvair save 2005
Scheme share option 2007  share option  share option LTSP 2008  share option
Share price at grant date 13800p 13500p 11000p 11400p 108 50p 99 50p 69 5p
Exercise price 13800p 10800p 11000p 11400p 200p 80 Oop 69 5p
Shares under option 310,000 415975 15000 150,000 767373 470,470 350,000
Vesting penod (years) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Expected volatibty 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 50% 50%
Expected life (years) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Risk free rate 525% 575% 525% 525% 525% 5 00% 0 50%
Dwidend yield 156% 159% 200% 2 00% 194% 2 10% 180%
Fair value per option (£) 033045 046118 025092 026332 271828 047019 021209
2009 2008
Share based payments £000 £ 000
Charge for the year 124 105

The expected volatility 1s based on histonc share price movements The Directors anticipate that in the current
economic conditions 1t 1s possible the performance critena in relation to certain share options may not be met

dnouny
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23 Other reserves

2009 2008
Cumulative Cumutative
translation Retamned translation Retained
reserve eanmngs reserve earnings
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £000
At 1 December 1,295 5,024 (3.824) 4,665
Prafit for the year attnibutable to shareholders - 689 - 2,870
Direct to equity
Dividends paid - (947) - (909)
Actuanal losses net of tax - (3.528) - {1,652)
Share based payments net of tax - 14 - 50
Interest rate swap cash flow hedge - (245) - -
Exchange differences {872) - 5119 -
At 30 November 423 1,107 1,295 5.024
24 Cash generated from operations
2009 2008
£000 £000
Operating profit 2,103 4816
Adjustments for
— Non cash pension charge 500 100
— Share based payments 124 105
— Depreciation and amortisation 1,991 1,623
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 1
Operating cash flows before movernent in working capitat 4,723 6,645
Changes in working capital (exctuding the effects of acquisition and
exchange differences on consolidation)
— Decrease/{increase) in inventonies 1.522 (1,176)
— Decrease n trade and other recervables 1,982 289
- {Decrease) in payables (2,211)  (1,443)
- (Decrease) in provisions - (78)
Decrease/(increase} in working capitat 1,293 (2.408)
Cash generated from operations 6.016 4,237
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25 Acquisitions
There were no acquisitions n the current financial year

Acquisition of Toolturn Engineering Limited in 2008

On 28 March 2008, The Group purchased 100% of the 1ssued share capital of CM7 Limited and its wholly owned
subsidiary Toolturn Engineering Limited for a total consideration of £990,000 The acquired business primanily sells to
businesses within the Microfiltration segment and these transactions are eliminated on consolidation The company
contributed external revenues of £232,000 and a minimal impact to the Group profit for the period 29 March 2008 to
30 November 2008 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 December 2007, the company would have contributed external
revenues of £332,000 and a mimimal impact to the Group profit for the year ended 30 November 2008

MNote £ 000

Purchase consideration

Cash pad 653

Deferred consideraticn 300

Direct costs relating to the acquisition 37

Total purchase consideration 990

Fair value of net assets acquired (396)
Goodwill w0 594

The Goodwill is attributable to the workforce of the acquired business and synergies expected to anise after acquisition
within the Microfiltration segment

The deferred consideration 1s unsecured loan notes pard in equal nstalments over a 3 year penod expinng in
March 2011 The unsecured loan notes are interest bearing at National Westrmnster Bank plc base rate

The total adjustments required to the book vatues of the assets and hiabilities acquired in order to present the net assets
at fair value in accordance with Group accounting principles were £4,000 The purchase has been accounted for as an
acquisition

The assets and habibities as of 28 March 2008 arising from the acquisition are as follows

Acquiree s
carrymg
Fair value amount
Note £ 000 £ 000
Property, plant and equipment 9 444 444
Inventones 72 81
Trade and other receivables 373 365
Cash and cash equivalents (106) (106}
Trade and other payables (195) (191)
Deferred tax hiability (54) (54)
Finance leases (138) (139)
Net assets acquired 396 400
Purchase consideration settled in cash 650
Cash and cash equivalents in assets acquired 106

Cash outflow on acquisition 796

dnoin
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25 Acquisitions continued

Acquisition of Seal Analytical Limeted Group in 2008

On 9 July 2008, the Group purchased 100% of the i1ssued share capital of Seal Analytical Limited The total consideration
was £3,934,000, on acquisition external loans included in the net habilities acquired totalling £2,056,000 were paid The
group contributed external revenues of £3,198.000 and a net profit of £130,000 to the Group for the peniod 9 July 2008
to 30 November 2008 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 December 2007, the group would have contnbuted external

revenues of £7,957,000 and a net profit of £293,000 for the year ended 30 November 2008

Note £ 000
Purchase consideration
Cash paid 2,274
Fair value of shares i1ssued 22 1,286
Direct costs relating to the acquisition 374
Total purchase consideration 3,934
Fair value of net hiabilities acquired 1,145
Goodwill 10 5.079

The fair value of shares 1ssued was based on the published average mid-market price of a buyer share for the five
business days pnior to acquisition

The Goodwill 1s attributable to the workforce of the acquired business, the synergies and potential for development
expected to anse after the Group's acquisition

The total adjustments required to the book values of the assets and habilities acquired in order to present the net assets
at far value in accordance with Group accounting principles were £495,000 The purchase has been accounted for as an
acquisition

Acquiree s
carrying
Fair value amount
Note £ 000 £ 000
Property, plant and equipment 9 109 109
Software 10 487 348
Trademarks (included i intangibles) [ 32 -
Inventones 943 909
Trade and other receivables 1,767 1,482
Cash and cash equivalents 379 379
Trade and other payables {2,536) (2,541}
Borrowings {2,116} (2,116}
Finance leases (272) (272)
Corporation tax debtor 62 62
Net Liabilittes acquired (1,145)  (1.,640)
Purchase consideration settled in cash 2,648
Cash and cash equivalents i subsidiary acquired (379)
Repayment of acquired borrowings 2,056

Cash outftow on acquisition 4,325
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26 Financial nsk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial nsks market nsk {including currency nsk and cash flow interest
rate nisk}, credit nsk and liquidity nsk The Group's overall nsk management programme 1s disclosed on pages 12 and 13
of the Finance Director’s review and page 20 of the Directors’ report The Group uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge certain nisk exposures

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internatronally and i1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from various currency exposures,
primanly 1n respect of the US dollar and the Euro Foreign exchange nisk anises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and Liabilities and net investments in foreign operations

(1) US dollar

The Group has investments in its US based subsidianes denominated 1n US dollars Currency exposure ansing from the
net assets of the Group's US operations 1s managed through borrowings denominated in relevant foreign currencies

The UK operations generate significant US revenues and forward contracts are used to reduce the impact of movernents
in the US dollar exchange rate

The Group has the following outstanding US dollar forward contracts

2009 2008
$ 000 000
Outstanding forward contracts 2,500 1,800
The Group has the following current assets and liabilities denominated in US dollars
2009 2008
5000 $ 000
Trade recevables denominated in US doilars 5.610 8,519
Other receivables denominated in US dollars 3,858 6,064
Cash balances denominated in US dollars 3,603 2,043
Trade payables denominated in US dollars (2.849) (3,670)
Other creditors denominated in US dollars (1.837)  (2,447)
8,385 10,509

If the US dollar exchange rate were to move by 10% against Sterling, the Group would make the following
gains/{losses)

2009 2008

£000 £000

US dollar strengthens 567 761
US dollar weakens (464) (623)

{(u) Euro

The Group has investments in its European based subsidianies denorminated in Euros Currency exposure ansing from the
net assets of the Group’s European operations i1s managed through net purchases from suppliers as a partial natural
hedge

The Group has a fong term debtor denominated in Euros which 1s offset by fareign deneminated borrowings

The UK operations generate Eurc revenues and forward contracts are used to reduce the impact of Euro exchange rate
movements

dnoin
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26 Financial nsk management continued

The Group has the following outstanding Euro forward contracts

2009 2008
£ 000 £ 000
Outstanding forward contracts 350 500
The Group has the following current assets and liabilities denominated in Euros

2009 2008
€000 € 000
Trade receivables denominated in Euros 2,041 1,884
Other receivables denorminated in Euros 2,571 740
Cash balances denominated in Euros 908 1,193
Trade payables denominated in Euros (1,409) (1,030)
Other creditors denominated in Euros (754) (347)
3,357 2,440

If the Euro exchange rate were to move by 10% against Sterling, the Group would make the following gains/(losses)
2009 2008
£000 £ 000
Euro strengthens 342 224
Euro weakens (289) (183)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk anses from long-term borrowings Borrowings in the years ended 30 November 2009 and
2008 were 1ssued at variable rates and are denominated in US dollars, Euros and Sterling The Group has entered into a2n
interest rate swap agreement on 66% (2008 nil%) of the US denominated borrowings te reduce the impact of future
changes in US interest rates The Group has entered into an interest rate swap agreement on 46% (2008 mii%) of the

Sterling denominated borrowings to reduce the smpact of future changes in UK interest rates

The Group 15 exposed to cash flow risk in respect of loans not covered by the nterest rate swap agreements

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower on borrowings throughout the year with all other vanables held constant, the

post tax profit for the year would have been £138,000 (2008 £ 141,000} lowerfhigher respectively

The Group possesses finance leases which are secured on the assets to which the lease relates The leases commit the
Group to make monthly payments of £13,000 (2008 £17.000) The Group does not believe there 15 sigmficant cash flow
risk associated with these leases as the Group has cash reserves However, should the Group be unable to meet the
finance lease obligations, then the lenders have recourse against the assets in order to reclaim the debt due

Credit risk
Credit nsk 1s disclosed in note 14
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26 Financial risk management continued

Liquidity risk

Banking facilities were renegotiated in June 2009 Further details including a matunity profile are disclosed in note 17
The amortising debt commits the Group to quarterly repayments of principal of £125,000 Interest 1s payable based on
the length of the revolving factities, typically between 1 and 3 months and on a quarterly basis for the term loan The
Group 1s required to meet banking covenants on a quarterly basis Whilst the Group has sufficient cash reserves and
expects future trading to enable 1t to meet its cash flow obligations, should trading performance prevent it from doing
so then the lender has recourse over the Group’s assets

The table below analyses the Group's non-denvative financial liabilities and net-settled denvative financial habilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty
date Derivative financial Liabilities are included in the analysis to the extent their contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of cash flows The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1 year and 2 years and 5 years S years
30 November 2009 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Borrowings (excluding finance lease hiabilities) 1,175 16,204 906 -
Finance lease liabilities 156 a6 - -
Derivatives 198 47 - -
Trade and other payables 7,945 - - -
9,474 16,297 age -
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1 year and 2 years. and 5 years S years
30 November 2008 £ 000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Borrowings (excluding finance lease habilities) 1,427 1,369 18,450 -
finance lease liabilities 195 156 46 -
Denvatives — - — —
Trade and other payables 9,201 - - -
10,823 1,525 18,496 -

Capital risk

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability as a going concern in order to
provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital In order to adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dvidends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio This ratio 1s calculated as net debt dvided by total capital
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet less cash and cash equivalents
Total capital 1s calculated as‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet The gearing ratio at 30 Novemnber 2009
was 38% (2008 40%)

27 Commitments

Capital and other finanaal commitments

Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided in the financial statements at 30 November 2009 were
£160,000 (2008 £306,000)

Operating lease commitments — minimum lease payments

2009 2008

Land and Land and
bulldings Other buildings Other
£'000 £000 £ 000 £000

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expining

Within one year 1,252 145 803 132
Later than one year and less than five years 2,988 221 3,322 340
After five years 2,397 - 3,045 -

6,637 366 7,170 472
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28 Contingent hability

The Group transferred its ongoing Liability under a property lease to a third party in March 2008 Under the terms of the
lease, should the third party default on payment, the lessor has recourse to the Group The lease term ends in September
2012 and the potential hability at 30 Novermber 2009 totalled £85,000 (2008 £123,000)

29 Key management compensation

Only the Executive Directors are classified as key management Their remuneration is shown in the Report of the
Remuneration Committee

2009 2008
£000 £000
Salaries and other short term employee benefits 467 582
Other long term benefits 45 45
Share based payments 56 63
569 690
30 Principal subsidiaries
The principal operating companies at 30 November 2009 are as follows -
Country of
mcorporallon
Name and operation % holding
Selee Corporation USA 100%
Porvair Advanced Matenals USA 100%
Porvarr Selee Advanced Maternials (Wuhan) Co Limited China 100%
Porvair Filtration Group Inc {formally Omnifilter Inc) USA 100%
Porvarr Filtration Group Limited England 100%
Toolturn Engineening Limited England 100%
Porvawr Sciences Lirmited England 100%
Seal Analytical Limited England 100%
Seal Analytical GmbH Germany 100%
Seal Analytical Inc USA 100%

The other subsidiaries, which are either dormant or non trading, are disclosed on the Annual Return
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Porvair plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements
of Porvair plc for the year ended 30 November 2009 which
comprise the Parent Company Balance Sheet, the Parent
Company Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’
Funds and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s
applicabte law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 19, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the parent company financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent
company financal statements in accordance with
apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards

for Auditors

Thus report, including the opinions, has been prepared

for and only for the company's members as a body In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, n giving
these opintons, accept or assume responsibtlity for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
15 shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in wniting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company’s
arcumstances and have been cansistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statemtents
In our opinion the parent company financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s
affairs as at 30 November 2009,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

« the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006, and

« the information given tn the Directors' Report for the
financial year for which the parent company financial
statements are prepared Is consistent with the parent
company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, In our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

- the parent company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Group financial
statements of Porvair plc for the year ended

30 November 2009

-~

SM k&ugr Statu'ler); Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Cambndge

25 January 2010
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Parent company balance sheet (under UK GAAP)

2009 2008
As a1 30 Novembes Note £ 000 £000
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 4 51 44
Investments 5 63,149 63,550

63,200 63,594

Current assets

Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year 6 3z 79
Debtors amounts falling due wathin one year 6 104 196
136 275
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 7 (6.745)  (5.067)
Net current liabilities (6.609) (4.792)
Total assets less current babilities 56,591 58,802
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 7 {16,583) (18,280)
Net assets 40,008 40,522

Capital and reserves

Called up share capstal 10 841 841
Share premium account " 34,024 34,024
Exchange reserve n (1,341} {1,078)
Profit and loss account n 6,484 6,735
Total shareholders’ funds 40,008 40,522

The financial statements on pages 64 to 70 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 January 2010 and were
signed on its behalf by

B D'W Stocks

NN N

(N
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Company profit for the financial year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account is presented for the holding

company

The profit after tax attnbutable to the Company which has been dealt with in the accounts 1s £572,000

(2008 £200,000)

The Company has no other gains and losses other than the profit above and therefore no separate statement of total

recognised gains and losses has been presented

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

2009 2008

For the year ended 30 November Note £000 £ 000
Profit for the financial year 572 200
Dwvidends (947) {909)
(375) {709)

Exchange differences n (263) 545
Net proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary share capital - 1,286
Share based payments n 124 105
Net {decrease}/increase in shareholders’ funds (514) 1,227
Opening shareholders’ funds 40,522 39,295
40,008 40,522

Closing shareholders’ funds
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 and applicable UK accounting standards A summary of the more important accounting policies is set out
below, which have been applied on a consistent basis with the previous year, except where noted

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are capitalised at cost and are depreciated by equal annual amounts over their estimated useful
lives Annual depreciation rates are 10% to 33 33% for plant, machinery and equipment Assets in the course of
construction are capitalised at cost including professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs Depreciation
for these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use

Impairment of assets
Assets are regularly reviewed to confirm their carrying values Where the expected realisable value 15 lower than the
book value, the excess of book value 1s charged to the profit and loss account during the penod

Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value

Turnover

Turnover comprises the invoiced value of goods and services supphed net of value added tax and other sales taxes
Turnover Is recognised when goods are despatched to the customer at which point the nsks and rewards of ewnership
are transferred

Patents and trademarks
All expenditure on the registration, renewal and maintenance of patents and trademarks is expensed as incurred

Foreign exchange
Assets and habilities denominated in foretgn currencies are translated into Sterting at the rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the financial year

Exchange differences ansing on retranslation of non-monetary assets and habilities are recognised directly to the
exchange reserve All other foreign exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account in the year in which
they arise

Deferred taxation

The charge for tax 1s based on the profit for the year and takes into account tax deferred or accelerated because of
timing differences between the treatment of certain tems for accounting and tax purposes Full proviston 1s made for
deferred tax resulting from timing differences between profits computed for tax purposes and profits stated in the
financial statements to the extent that there is an obligation to pay more tax in the future as a result of the reversal of
those timing differences Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that they are expected to be recoverable, and
are measured on a non-discounted basis based on tax rates and laws enacted at the balance sheet date

Pensions
Pension costs for defined benefit and defined contribution schemes are charged to the profit and loss account as
incurred

The Company parttcipates in the Group's closed defined benefit pension scheme, the Porvarr ple Pension and Death
Benefit Pian The Company includes only the cost of its contnbutions to the scheme in its profit and loss account for the
year because the structure of the scheme is such that it does not enable any indvidual group company to identify 1ts
shares of the assets and Liabilities of the scheme

Share based payments

The Company has apphed the requirements of FRS 20, 'Share based payments’ In accordance with the transitional
provisions, FRS 20 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of
1 January 2005

The Company has adopted Urgent Issues Task Force (UITF) Abstract 44, ‘Financial Reporting Standard 20 - Group and
Treasury Share Transactions' Where the parent company has granted nghts over its equity instruments to the
employees of subsidiary companies, there 1s a correspanding tncrease recognised in the investment in subsidiary
undertakings n those years

The Company i1ssues equity settled, share based payments to certain employees Equity settled, share based payments
are measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled, share
based payments 1s expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest The charge is then credited back to reserves

Fair value 1s measured by use of a Black-Scholes model The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are typically recognised in profit or loss in the pertod in which they are incurred Borrowing costs
incurred in arrangement of new facilities are capitalised and subsequently recognised in the profit and loss account over
the period of the borrowngs

2 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

2009 2008
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1s stated after charging £ 000 £000
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 741 920
Soaial secunity costs 82 82
Other pension costs 66 69
Share based payments 65 72
954 1,143
Average number of employees 7 7

Directors’ share based payments are shown in note 29 of the Group's atcounts
Services provided by the Company’s auditors and network firms

During the year the Company obtained the following services from the Company's auditors at costs as detailed below

Fees payable to Company auditors for audit of parent company 13 13
Tax services 29 43
42 56

In addition to the above services, the Company's auditors acted as auditors to the Porvair plc Pension and Death Benefit
Plan The appointment of auditors to the Group’s pension plan and the fees patd in respect of those audits are agreed by
the trustees who act independently from the management of the Company The aggregate fees paid to the Company’s
auditors for the audit services to the pension plan duning the year was £13,000 (2008 £13,000}

3 Directors’ emoluments

Detailed disclosures of Directors” individual remuneration and share options are given in the Report of the Remuneration
Comumuttee on pages 22 to 25

4 Tangible fixed assets

Plant  Assetsn the

machinery and course of
equipment  construction Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000

Cost
At 1 December 2008 114 33 147
Reclassification 33 (33) -
Additions 21 - 21
Disposals (12) - (12)
At 30 Novernber 2009 156 - 156
Depreciation
At 1 December 2008 {103) - (103)
Charge for year {14) - (14)
Disposals 12 - 12
At 30 Novermnber 2009 (105) - (105)
Net book value
At 30 Novemnber 2009 51 - 51
At 30 November 2008 11 33 44

There were no capital commitments, authorised and contracted for, in the Company at 30 November 2009 (2008 £Nil)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

5 Fixed asset investments

2005 2008
Investment in Loans to Investment in Loans 10
subsidiary subsidiary subsidrary subswdiary
undertakings undertakings Tatal undertakings  undertakings Total
£000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Cost
At 1 December 46,415 33,209 79,624 42,324 27,561 69,885
Additions in the year 1,755 - 1,755 4058 - 4,058
(Repayments)/advances (288} (1,160)  (1,448) - 2,432 2,432
Capital contnbutions ansing from FRS 20
share based payments charge 59 - 59 33 - 33
Exchange differences - (767) (767) - 3,216 3216
At 30 November 47,941 31,282 79,223 46,415 33,209 79,624
Provisions
At 1 December (2,598) (13476} (16,074} (2598) (13.476) (16,074)
At 30 November (2,598) (13,476} (16,074) (2,598) (13,476) (16,074)
Net book value
At 30 November 45,343 17.806 63,149 43,817 19,733 63,550
At 1 December 43,817 19,733 63,550 39,726 14,085 53811

The additions in 2009 relate to an increase in the Porvair Corporation investment as consideration for the transfer of
Seal Analytical Inc to Porvair Corporation of £1,600,000 and a £155,000 investment in Porvair Selee Advanced Matenals

(Wuhan) Co Limited based in China

The capital contnbutions ansing from FRS 20 charges represents the Company granting rights over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings Application of UITF 44 results (n a corresponding increase in

investments in subsidiary undertakings

Details of the subsidiary undertakings are given in note 30 of the Group accounts

6 Debtors
2009 2008
Note £ 000 £ 000
Amounts falling due within one year
Corporation tax recoverable 85 -
Prepayments 19 196
104 196
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred taxation 9 32 79
32 79
7 Creditors
2009 2008
MNate £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdraft and other loans 8 6.046 4,246
Trade creditors 146 315
Taxation and social secunty 55 69
Accruals and deferred income 498 431
Corporation tax payable - 6
6,745 5,067
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans 8 16,430 18,116
Retirement oblrgations 153 164
16,583 18,280
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8 Bank and other loans

2009 2008
£ 000 £ 000
Secured mult)-currency revolving credit facibity of Us$25 mullion
{2008 US$25 millon) matuning in july 2011 with interest at 2 95%
{2008 1 825%) above US dollar LIBOR 13,588 14919
Secured five year amortising debt faciity of £1 875 million
(2008 £2 375 mullion) expiming in July 2013 with interest at 3 25%
(2008 1825%) above LIBOR 1,863 2,359
Secured revolving credit facibty of Euro €1 6 million (2008 €16 million)
maturing January 2011 with interest at 2 95% (2008 1 825%) above EURIBOR 1,461 1,320
Bank loans offset against cash balances in other Group companies under a Group
banking offset arrangement 5,564 3,764

22,476 22,362

2009 2008
£000 £000
Bank and other loans of the Company are repayable as follows
Within one year 6,046 4,246
One to two years 15,560 482
Two to five years 870 17,634

22,476 22,362

The loans are shown net of Issue costs of £67,000 (2008 £82,000) which are being amortised over the Life of the loan
agreement On 3 June 2009, the Group renegotiated its banking arrangements and covenants resulting in an increase in
margin of 1 125% on revolving credit facilities and 1 425% on the term loan facility

At 30 Novernber 2009 the Group had £1,646,000 (2008 £1,310,000) of unutilised borrowing facilities under the
existing bank facility and a £1,500,000 (2008 £1,500,000) overdraft facility

The carrying values of bank borrowings approximate theiwr far value

The multi-currency, Euro revolving credit facilities and amortising debt faciity are secured by fixed and ftoating charges
aganst the Group's assets

9 Provisions for Liabilities and charges

Under FRS 19 the Company provides for deferred tax on a full provision basis Deferred tax assets in the accounts have
been provided for as follows

2009 2008
Assets/(habilities) £ 000 £ 000
Accelerated capital allowances (65) -
Short term timing differences 97 79

32 79

There were no other unprovided deferred tax amounts at 30 November 2009 {2008 £Nil}

The deferred tax asset i the table above has been included 1 debtors amounts falling due after more than one year
{note 6)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

10 Called up share capital

2009 2008
£000 £000
Authonised
75,000,000 ordinary shares of 2 pence each (2008 75,000,000) 1,500 1,500
Allotted, called up and fully paid
42,073,640 ordinary shares of 2 pence each (2008 42,073,640) 841 841
Shares 1ssued as fully paid
At 1 December 42,073,640 40,698,506
Issued during the year - 1375134
At 30 November 42,073,640 42,073,640
Details of shares 1ssued 1n 2008 and share options are disclosed in note 22 of the Group accounts
11 Reserves
Share Profit and
premium Exchange loss
account reserve account Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 December 2008 34,024 {1.078) 6,735 39,681
Deficit for the year - - (37%) (375)
Exchange differences - (263) - (263)
Share based payments - - 124 124
At 30 November 2009 34,024 (1,341} 6,484 39,167
The distnbutable reserves compnise the net amounts of the exchange reserve and the profit and loss account
12 Financial commitments
At 30 Novernber 2009, the Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expinng as
follows
2009 2008
Land and Land and
buildings Gther buildings Qther
£000 £000 £'000 £000
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
Within one year - - 13 -
Later than one year and less than five years 205 6 - 2
After five years - - 45 -
205 6 58 2
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Shareholder information

Registrar services
Our shareholder register 1s managed and administered by Capita Registrars Capita should be able to help
you with most questions you have in relation to your holding in Porvair shares

Capita can be contacted at

Capita Registrars
MNorthern House
Woodsome Park
Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield
HD8 OLA

www caputareglst rars com

Telephone 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p a minute plus network extras, lines are open 8 30am-5 30pm
Mon-Fri} (from cutside the UK +44 (0) 20 8639 3399) E-mail ssd@capitaregistrars com

In addition Capita offers a range of other services to shareholders including a share dealing service and
a share portal to manage your holdings

Share dealing service

A share dealing service 1s available to existing shareholders to buy or sell the Company’s shares via Capita
Share Dealing Services Online and telephone dealing facilities provide an easy to access and simple to
use service

For further information on this service, or to buy or sell shares, please contact

www capitadeal com — online dealing

0870 458 4577 — telephone dealing

Please note that the Directors of the Company are not seeking to encourage shareholders to either buy or

sell their shares Shareholders in any doubt as to what action to take are reccmmended to seek financial
advice from an independent financial adviser authorised by the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
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Financial calendar 2010

30 November 2009
Financial year end 2009

26 January 2010
Fult year 2009 results

13 Apnl 2010
AGM/Interim Management Statement

28 Apnil 2010
Ex-dividend date

30 Apnl 2010
Record date for dividend

31 May 2010
Half year 2010 period end

11 june 2070
Payment date for dividend

29 June 2010
Half year 2010 results

4 August 2010
Ex-dividend date

6 August 2010
Record date for dividend

10 September 2010
Payment date for dividend

18 October 2010
Intenim Management Statement

30 November 2010
Financial year end 2010

25 January 2011
Full year 2010 results
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